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Percentage of Stores with Specialty Departments

1997 1992

Floral  91% 77%

Deli 92 86

Bakery 82  71

Pharmacy 59 46

Manufacturing and Processing Facilities

U.S. Canada

Milk Plants  7  3

Bread Baking Plants  6  2

Ice Cream Plants  5  2

Cheese and Meat Packaging Plants  2  2

Soft Drink Bottling Plants  4  –

Fruit and Vegetable Processing Plants  1  3

Other Food Processing Plants  3  1

Pet Food Plant  1  –
■■

Total 29  13
■■

Corporate Profile

Safeway Inc. is the second largest food and drug retailer

in North America based on sales. As of January 3, 1998,

the company operated 1,368 stores (including 315 Vons

stores) in the Western, Southwestern, Rocky Mountain,

and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States and in

western Canada. On April 8, 1997, the company

acquired the shares of The Vons Companies, Inc. it 

did not already own. In support of its stores, Safeway 

has an extensive network of distribution, manufacturing 

and food processing facilities.

Safeway also holds a 49% interest in Casa Ley, S.A.

de C.V., which at January 3, 1998 operated 74 food 

and general merchandise stores in western Mexico.
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95 96 97 95 96 9795 96 97

$0.68 $0.97 $1.25 6.52% 7.70% 5.35x 6.94x 7.18x7.18%

Diluted Earnings per Share 


(BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY LOSS) 





Operating Cash Flow*


(% OF SALES)

Interest Coverage Ratio*




*Defined on page 17

53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts) 1997 1996 1995

■■ ■■■

For the Year:

Sales $22,483.8 $17,269.0 $16,397.5

Gross profit 6,414.7 4,774.2 4,492.4

Operating profit 1,279.7 891.7 727.4

Income before extraordinary loss 621.5 460.6 328.3

Net income 557.4 460.6 326.3

Diluted earnings per share (Note 1):

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 0.97 $ 0.68

Net income 1.12 0.97 0.68

Capital expenditures (Note 2) 829.4 620.3 503.2

At Year-End:

Common shares outstanding (in millions) (Notes 1 and 3) 476.2 442.8 427.4

Retail square feet (in millions) 53.2 40.7 40.1

Number of stores 1,368 1,052 1,059

Note 1: Share and per-share amounts reflect the two-for-one stock splits effected in February 1998 and in January 1996. 
Earnings per share have been restated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No.128.

Note 2: Defined on pages 13 and 14 under “Capital Expenditure Program.”
Note 3: 1997 net of 61.2 million shares held in treasury.

Financial Highlights
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To Our Stockholders

We continued to make solid progress in 1997. During

the year we improved our operating results, accelerated

our store building and remodeling program, and com-

pleted a major acquisition. 

Strong Operating Results
Income in 1997 was $621.5 million ($1.25 per share)

before extraordinary loss compared to net income of

$460.6 million ($0.97 per share) the year before.

During 1997 we incurred an extraordinary loss of $64.1

million ($0.13 per share) for the early retirement of

debt, which reduced net income to $557.4 ($1.12 per

share). Per-share amounts reflect a two-for-one stock

split on February 25, 1998. 

The company’s 1997 income statement includes

Vons’ operating results since the beginning of the sec-

ond quarter, while the income statements for 1996 and

the first quarter of 1997 reflect Safeway’s 35% equity

interest in Vons. Labor disputes reduced net income by

an estimated $0.04 per share in 1997 and $0.07 per

share in 1996. 

Sales for the 53 weeks of 1997 were $22.5 billion

compared to $17.3 billion for the 52 weeks of 1996.

The increase was due primarily to the Vons merger and

the additional week in 1997. 

On a pro forma basis, gross profit rose to 28.63% of

sales in 1997 from 28.20% in 1996, mainly because

of improvements in buying practices and product mix.

In addition, we recorded $6.1 million of LIFO income

in 1997, reflecting slight deflation for the year. On a

pro forma basis, operating and administrative expense

as a percentage of sales declined to 22.95% in 1997

from 23.30% in 1996. Pro forma information is based

on the combined historical financial statements of

Safeway and Vons as if the merger had occurred at 

the beginning of 1996. 

Maintaining Financial Strength
Interest expense rose to $241.2 million in 1997 from

$178.5 million the prior year. The increase resulted

from the debt incurred to repurchase stock in conjunc-

tion with the Vons merger and from the additional week

in 1997. Despite the large increase in interest expense,

*Albertson’s, Inc., American Stores Company, Food Lion, Inc., Fred Meyer, Inc., The Great
Atlantic & Pacific Tea Company, Inc., Giant Food Inc., Hannaford Bros. Co., The Kroger Co.,
The Penn Traffic Company, Safeway Inc. and Winn-Dixie Stores, Inc.

Increased Stockholder Value


(FIVE-YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN)
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our coverage ratio – operating cash flow divided by

interest expense – improved to 7.18 times in 1997 from

6.94 times the year before.

During 1997 we reduced the average interest rate 

on debt by refinancing a significant portion of higher-

cost debt, entering the commercial paper market and

negotiating a new bank credit agreement.

Modernizing Stores and Support Facilities 
In 1997 Safeway and Vons together invested $829 

million in capital expenditures. We opened 37 new

stores, completed 181 remodels and began construct-

ing a new distribution center in Maryland. During 1998

we expect to spend approximately $950 million and

plan to open 40 to 45 new stores, remodel more than

200 existing stores and finish construction of the

Maryland distribution center. 

The central focus of our capital spending program

continues to be to improve our store system within

existing markets. Replacement stores and remodels

account for the majority of our capital investments. 

For further growth, we will consider other acquisitions

outside our operating areas. 

Vons Consolidation Ahead of Schedule 
Largely as a result of the “can do” attitude of transition

team members from both companies, we are well

ahead of schedule in integrating the Vons operation

into Safeway. We have already realized substantial 

synergistic benefits from the merger and anticipate

more going forward. 

Review and Outlook 
It has now been five years since the current manage-

ment team began working to turn around a company

that was struggling with high costs, sluggish sales 

and inadequate returns on invested capital. In 1992

Safeway was an industry laggard, trailing its peers in

almost every key measure of operating and financial

performance. Today it ranks among the best. 

During the last five years, the price of a share of

Safeway stock has grown at an average annual rate of

58%. As shown on the chart on page 2, $1,000 invested

in Safeway stock at the beginning of 1993 had increased

in value to more than $9,730 by the end of 1997. We

believe our efforts to execute the growth strategy outlined

on the following pages are paying off. With the ongoing

support of 147,000 Safeway employees, who have

helped create our past success, we hope to continue to

add value to your investment in 1998 and beyond.

We are committed to growing our business for our

customers, our employees and our stockholders. 

Steven A. Burd

President and Chief Executive Officer

February 27, 1998
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During the past five years, Safeway’s management

team has demonstrated proficiency at turning

around underperforming assets. Central to our

success is a simple but powerful formula with

three basic elements: control costs, increase sales and improve

capital management.

Until recently, we concentrated our efforts on adding value to

assets within our existing market areas. With the Vons merger in

April 1997, we looked beyond these areas for continued growth.

We believe there may be opportunities to make additional acquisi-

tions that would enhance Safeway’s long-term growth.

The following are a few examples of growth in core Safeway

markets and at Vons.

Growing
Our
Business
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Internal
Growth
Capital
Spending

New Distribution Center (top) Construction began in 1997 on a new 815,000 square
foot distribution center in Maryland. This state-of-the-art facility will replace an 
existing center and, when completed, will enable our 127-store Eastern Division 
to operate more efficiently. We expect the new center to employ more than 
600 people.

Store Modernization (middle) This new 55,000 square-foot store in Troutdale, Oregon
is one of 37 opened during 1997. By concentrating the majority of our capital
spending in existing areas, where we already command strong market positions, 
we believe we can enhance prospects for long-term sales growth and operating 
margin improvement. Approximately 54% of all our stores have been built or
remodeled in the last five years, leaving us significant opportunities to continue
improving our store base.

Disciplined Spending (bottom) Before a major capital spending project is approved, 
it is reviewed by our Real Estate Committee, whose seven members include the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer. At Safeway, capital spending is
a carefully planned, highly disciplined process. We require a 22.5% pretax return 
on investment for all new store and remodel projects. Projects are tracked over an
extended period to measure actual results against targeted rates of return.



Expanding Private Label (above left) The expanding Safeway SELECT line 
of premium quality products continued to record strong sales in 1997. We
have an extensive private label program, comprising some 3,870 items –
including more than 850 Safeway SELECT products. As a result of our
commitment to private label, our customers enjoy consistently fine quality
at exceptional savings, and we enjoy higher margins and brand loyalty.

Serving the Customer (above) From the location and design of our stores 
to the selection and display of the products we sell, the customer is 
the central focus of everything we do. All our efforts come together in 
the store, where knowledgeable, helpful employees eagerly respond 
to shoppers’ needs. 

Community Involvement (left) Safeway’s community involvement is important
to our customers and employees alike. As a leading corporate sponsor of the
National Easter Seal Society, the company and its employees have raised more
than $50 million for people with disabilities since 1985. In addition, we support
many other local charities, and food banks, to assist those with special needs
in our market areas.

6

Internal
Growth
Retailing 
Initiatives



Vons Merger (top right) Vons, the second largest supermarket operator in southern
California based on sales, has a strong consumer franchise in one of the nation’s
largest, most affluent markets. The merger with Safeway has provided Vons with
access to increased capital for its store expansion program and with expertise in 
key operational areas. At the same time, Vons has brought valuable insights to
Safeway. Integration of the two operations is ahead of schedule.

Combined Expertise (bottom right) By combining the best practices of both compa-
nies, Safeway and Vons expect to make continued progress in areas such as 
cost containment, information technology and private label marketing. Several
promising developments have already evolved from the exchange of ideas 
and expertise. The merger has also enhanced geographic diversity and should
result in significant economies of scale in purchasing, administrative support 
and information systems.

Shared Values (below) Teamwork, a defining characteristic of our corporate culture,
has been clearly evident in the Vons merger. Perhaps more than any other factor,
our shared values and competitive spirit have enabled us to integrate the two
organizations with remarkable speed. A top priority going forward is to continue
nurturing these qualities in the combined company of 147,000 employees.

7

External
Growth
Vons
Merger



During 1997, Safeway continued to be among the 
industry leaders in the following key measures of 
financial performance:*

•Identical-store sales growth

•Expense ratio reduction

•Working capital management

•Operating cash flow margin

•Earnings per share growth

As a result of this performance, the value of Safeway 
common stock on the New York Stock Exchange at the 
close of trading in 1997 rose to $31.625 (post-split) 
per share, a gain of 48% from year-end 1996.

We have achieved these results by focusing on the 
three priorities detailed on the following pages.

Continued Strong Performance

8

*Based on latest available information



Operating and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales declined
35 basis points* in 1997, continuing a five-year trend. We believe Safeway
leads all major full-service food retailers in the magnitude of expense
reduction, measured as a percentage of sales, since 1992. A culture of
thrift permeates the organization. By running the business at its simple
best, we are able to serve our customers better at lower cost. 

We streamlined the administrative support structure at Vons.

We continued to consolidate our private-label manufacturing operations,
closing two plants.

Major union contracts signed during 1997 will help achieve competitive
labor costs in several key markets.

Vons’ data processing operations, previously outsourced, were combined
with Safeway’s information technology group.

Controlling Expenses

9

*Pro forma
(defined on page 2)

Improvement in Annual Operating 

and Administrative Expense Margin




(IN BASIS POINTS)

27 68 56 48 35*

Our O&A expense 

margin has improved 

in each of the last 

five years.

93 94 95 96 97



We continue to reinvest cost savings into the business to drive sales
growth, resulting in improved store standards, enhanced customer 
service and competitive pricing. Despite the absence of food price 
inflation in many of our operating areas during 1997, identical-store
sales rose 1.3% for the year and 6.4% over a two-year period. 

The Vons merger significantly expanded our sales base and 
geographic reach.

Further progress in category management enabled us to meet 
our customers’ needs more effectively. 

Great Meal Combos, our new line of prepared entrees and side dishes, 
were popular additions to our deli offerings.

We introduced 211 new Safeway SELECT items during 1997, bringing
the total product line to more than 850 items.

Increasing Sales

10

2.1% 4.4% 4.6% 5.1% 1.3%

Our identical-store sales 

gains over the past five 

years are among the 

best in the industry. 

Annual Identical-Store Sales Growth

93 94 95 96 97



Capital expenditures increased significantly in 1997. Returns on
invested capital continued to improve as we built and remodeled
stores more cost-effectively, and operated them more efficiently, 
than in the early 1990s. We maintained negative working capital 
for the fourth consecutive year, reflecting reduced warehouse 
inventory levels and improved payables management. 

Combined capital spending at Safeway and Vons was $829 million 
in 1997.

Safeway and Vons opened 37 new stores and remodeled 181 
existing stores.

Construction began on a new distribution center in Maryland. 

We signed a new bank agreement, entered the commercial paper
market and refinanced a significant portion of our public debt.

Managing Capital

11

Capital Expenditures*


(IN MILLIONS)

$290.2 $352.2 $503.2 $620.3 $829.4

Capital expenditures 

have increased since 

1993, reflecting strong 

operating results.

 

93 94 95 96 97 * Defined on pages 13 and 14
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Safeway Inc. (“Safeway” or the “Company”) is the second

largest food and drug chain in North America based on sales,

with 1,368 stores, including 315 Vons stores, at year-end 1997. 

The Company’s U.S. retail operating areas are located princi-

pally in Washington, Oregon, northern California, southern

California, Arizona, Colorado and the Mid-Atlantic region. The

Company also has Canadian retail operations which are located

primarily in British Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba/Saskatchewan.

For each of its 10 retail operating areas, Safeway believes that 

it holds the number one or number two market share position 

for the total area served. In support of its retail operations, the

Company has an extensive network of distribution, manufacturing

and food processing facilities.

On April 8, 1997, Safeway completed the acquisition of The

Vons Companies, Inc. (“Vons”) pursuant to which the Company

issued 83.2 million shares of the Company’s Common Stock for

all of the shares of Vons common stock that it did not already

own (the “Merger”). The Company also holds a 49% interest in

Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V. (“Casa Ley”), which operates 74 food and

general merchandise stores in western Mexico. 

Retail Operations

Stores Safeway operates stores ranging in size from approxi-

mately 5,900 square feet to over 89,000 square feet. Safeway

determines the size of a new store based on a number of con-

siderations, including the needs of the community the store

serves, the location and site plan, and the estimated return on

capital invested. Most stores offer a wide selection of both food

and general merchandise and feature a variety of specialty

departments such as bakery, delicatessen, floral and pharmacy.

In most of Safeway’s larger stores, specialty departments are

showcased in each corner and along the perimeter walls of the

store to create a pleasant shopping atmosphere. Safeway’s pri-

mary new store prototype is 55,000 square feet and is designed

to accommodate changing consumer needs and to achieve cer-

tain operating efficiencies. 

Safeway continues to operate a number of smaller stores

which offer an extensive selection of food and general merchan-

dise, and generally include one or more specialty departments.

These stores remain an important part of the Company’s store

network in smaller communities and certain other locations

where larger stores may not be feasible because of space limita-

tions and/or community needs or restrictions. 

The following table summarizes Safeway’s stores by size at

year-end 1997:
Number Percent 
of Stores of Total

Less than 30,000 square feet 368 27%
30,000 to 50,000 730 53
More than 50,000 270 20

■■■ ■■
Total stores 1,368 100%

■■■ ■■

Store Ownership At year-end 1997, Safeway owned more than

one-third of its stores. Safeway leased its remaining stores. In

recent years, the Company has preferred ownership because it

provides control and flexibility with respect to financing, remodel-

ing, expansions and closures. 

Merchandising Safeway’s operating strategy is to provide value

to its customers by maintaining high store standards and a

wide selection of high quality products at competitive prices.

The Company emphasizes high quality perishables such as

produce and meat, and specialty departments, including in-

store bakery, delicatessen, floral, and pharmacy designed to

provide one-stop shopping for today’s busy shoppers. 

Safeway has introduced a line of more than 850 premium

corporate brand products since 1993 under the “Safeway

SELECT” banner. These products include soft drinks, pasta

and pasta sauces, salsa, whole bean coffee, cookies, ice

cream, yogurt, pet food and laundry detergent. The line also

includes Safeway SELECT “Healthy Advantage” items such 

as low-fat ice cream and low-fat cereal bars, and Safeway

SELECT “Gourmet Club” frozen entrees and hors d’oeuvres. 

Company in Review
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The Safeway SELECT line is designed to offer premium quali-

ty products that are equal or superior in quality to comparable

best-selling nationally advertised brands, are offered at more

competitive prices, or are not available from national brand

manufacturers. Safeway also offers a wide selection of private

label products under well-known and respected brand names

such as Safeway, Vons, Lucerne, Jerseymaid and Mrs. Wright’s,

which the Company believes are equivalent in quality to compa-

rable nationally advertised brands. 

The Company continually refines its merchandising strategies,

which are designed to identify and accommodate changing

demographics, lifestyles and product preferences of its cus-

tomers. Safeway has intensified its efforts to improve in-stock

conditions and enhance merchandise presentation and selection.

Manufacturing and Wholesale Operations

The principal function of manufacturing operations is to pur-

chase, manufacture and process private label merchandise sold

in stores operated by the Company. As measured by sales dol-

lars, over one-half of Safeway’s private label merchandise is

manufactured in company-owned plants, and the remainder is

purchased from third parties. 

During 1993, Safeway began a review to identify manufac-

turing operations that were not providing acceptable returns.

This review resulted in the sale or closure of 19 plants from

1993 through 1997 and a reorganization of the manufacturing

division administrative office during 1994. In 1998, Safeway

expects to have fully operational a new food processing plant 

in California which will replace one that was closed in 1997 

and another that is expected to close in 1998. The ongoing

review of remaining manufacturing operations may result in

additional plant closures. 

Safeway’s Canadian subsidiary has a wholesale operation

that distributes both national brands and private label products

to independent grocery stores and institutional customers. 

Safeway operated the following manufacturing and process-

ing facilities at year-end 1997:
U.S. Canada

Milk plants 7 3
Bread baking plants 6 2
Ice cream plants 5 2
Cheese and meat packaging plants 2 2
Soft drink bottling plants 4 –
Fruit and vegetable processing plants 1 3
Other food processing plants 3 1
Pet food plant 1 –

■■■
Total 29 13

■■■

In addition, the Company operates laboratory facilities for

quality assurance and research and development in certain 

of its plants and at its U.S. manufacturing headquarters in

Walnut Creek, California. 

Distribution

Each of Safeway’s 10 retail operating areas is served by a

regional distribution center consisting of one or more facilities.

Safeway has 13 distribution/warehousing centers (10 in the

United States and three in Canada), which collectively provide

the majority of all products to stores operated by the Company.

Safeway’s distribution centers in northern California and British

Columbia are operated by third parties. Management regularly

reviews distribution operations focusing on whether these oper-

ations support their operating areas in a cost-effective manner.

As a result of such reviews, Safeway is constructing a replace-

ment distribution center in Maryland. 

Capital Expenditure Program

A component of the Company’s long-term strategy is its capital

expenditure program. The capital expenditure program funds new

stores, remodels, advances in information technology, and other

facilities including plant and distribution facilities and corporate

headquarters. In the last several years, Safeway management has

significantly strengthened its program to select and approve new

capital investments resulting in improved returns on investment. 



The table below reconciles cash paid for property additions

reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to

Safeway’s broader definition of capital expenditures (dollars in

millions), and also details changes in the Company’s store base

during such period:
1997 1996 1995

Cash paid for property 
additions $758.2 $541.8 $450.9

Less: Purchases of 
previously leased 
properties (28.2) (13.2) (9.9)

Plus: Present value of all 
lease obligations 
incurred 91.3 91.7 62.2

Mortgage notes assumed 
in property additions 0.9 – –

Vons first quarter expenditures 7.2 – –
■■ ■■

Total capital expenditures $829.4 $620.3 $503.2
■■ ■■

Capital expenditures as a 
percent of sales 3.7% 3.6% 3.1%

Vons stores acquired 316 – –
New stores opened 37 30 32
Stores closed or sold 37 37 35
Remodels 181 141 108
Total retail square footage 

at year-end (in millions) 53.2 40.7 40.1

Improved operations and lower project costs have raised the

return on capital projects, allowing Safeway to increase capital

expenditures to $829 million in 1997 from $620 million in 1996

and $503 million in 1995. In 1998, Safeway expects to spend

approximately $950 million and plans to open 40 to 45 new

stores, complete more than 200 remodels and finish construc-

tion of the Maryland distribution center.

Management regularly reviews the performance of individual

stores and other facilities on the basis of a variety of economic

factors. Upon reaching the decision to close a store or other

facility, the Company accrues estimated future losses, if any,

which may include lease payments or other costs of holding the

facility, net of estimated future income. As of year-end 1997,

Safeway had an accrued liability of $72.0 million for the antici-

pated future closure of 42 stores and $19.7 million for the 

anticipated future closure of other facilities.

Performance-Based Compensation

The Company has performance-based compensation plans 

that cover approximately 7,750 management employees.

Performance-based compensation plans set overall bonus 

levels based upon both operating results and working capital

management. Individual bonuses are based on job perfor-

mance. Certain employees are covered by capital investment

bonus plans which measure the performance of capital 

projects based on operating performance over several years. 

14



53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(Dollars in millions, except per-share amounts) 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■

Results of Operations
Sales $22,483.8 $17,269.0 $16,397.5 $15,626.6 $15,214.5

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■
Gross profit 6,414.7 4,774.2 4,492.4 4,287.3 4,123.3 
Operating and administrative expense (5,135.0) (3,882.5) (3,765.0) (3,675.2) (3,681.8)

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■
Operating profit 1,279.7 891.7 727.4 612.1 441.5
Interest expense (241.2) (178.5) (199.8) (221.7) (265.5)
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated 

affiliates (Note 1) 34.9 50.0 26.9 27.3 33.5
Other income, net 2.9 4.4 2.0 6.4 6.8

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■
Income before income taxes 

and extraordinary loss 1,076.3 767.6 556.5 424.1 216.3
Income taxes (454.8) (307.0) (228.2) (173.9) (93.0)

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■
Income before extraordinary loss 621.5 460.6 328.3 250.2 123.3
Extraordinary loss, net of tax benefit 

of $41.1, $1.3 and $6.7 (64.1) – (2.0) (10.5) –
■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 557.4 $ 460.6 $ 326.3 $ 239.7 $ 123.3
■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■

Diluted earnings per share (Note 2):
Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 0.97 $ 0.68 $ 0.51 $ 0.25
Extraordinary loss (0.13) – – (0.02) –

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■
Net income $ 1.12 $ 0.97 $ 0.68 $ 0.49 $ 0.25 

■■ ■■ ■■■ ■■■

Financial Statistics
Identical-store sales increases (Note 3) 1.3% 5.1% 4.6% 4.4% 2.1%
Gross profit margin 28.53% 27.65% 27.40% 27.44% 27.10%
Operating and administrative expense margin 22.84% 22.48% 22.96% 23.52% 24.20%
Operating profit margin 5.7% 5.2% 4.4% 3.9% 2.9%
Capital expenditures (Note 4) $ 829.4 $ 620.3 $ 503.2 $ 352.2 $ 290.2
Depreciation and amortization 455.8 338.5 329.7 326.4 330.2
Total assets 8,493.9 5,545.2 5,194.3 5,022.1 5,074.7
Total debt 3,340.3 1,984.2 2,190.2 2,196.1 2,689.2
Stockholders’ equity 2,149.0 1,186.8 795.5 643.8 382.9
Weighted average shares outstanding – 

diluted (in millions) (Note 2) 497.7 475.7 481.2 494.2 493.8

Other Statistics
Vons stores acquired during the year 316 – – – –
Stores opened during the year 37 30 32 20 14
Stores closed or sold during the year 37 37 35 36 39
Total stores at year-end 1,368 1,052 1,059 1,062 1,078 
Remodels completed during the year (Note 5) 181 141 108 71 45 
Total retail square footage at year-end (in millions) 53.2 40.7 40.1 39.5 39.4

Note 1. Reflects equity in Vons’ earnings through the first quarter of 1997.
Note 2. Share and per-share amounts have been restated to reflect the two-for-one stock splits effected February 1998 and January 1996.

Earnings per share have been restated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128. 
Note 3. Reflects sales increases for stores operating the entire measurement period in both the current and prior periods. 

1997 and 1996 identical-store sales exclude British Columbia stores, which were closed during a labor dispute in 1996.
Note 4. Defined on pages 13 and 14 under “Capital Expenditure Program.”
Note 5. Defined as store projects (other than maintenance) generally requiring expenditures in excess of $200,000. 

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Five-Year Summary Financial Information

15
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Stock Split

On January 28, 1998,

Safeway’s Board of Directors

authorized a two-for-one split of

the Company’s common stock.

The stock split was effected by

a distribution on February 25,

1998 of one additional share

for each share owned by stock-

holders of record on February

10, 1998. Share and per-share

amounts presented herein

have been restated to reflect

this stock split. 

Merger with The Vons

Companies, Inc. (“Vons”)

On April 8, 1997, Safeway

acquired Vons (the “Merger”).

Pursuant to the Merger, Safeway issued 83.2 million shares of

Safeway common stock for all of the Vons stock that Safeway 

did not already own. Vons is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Safeway, and as of the beginning of the second quarter of 

1997, Safeway’s consolidated financial statements include Vons’

financial results.

Results of Operations

Safeway’s net income was $557.4 million ($1.12 per share) in

1997, $460.6 million ($0.97 per share) in 1996, and $326.3

million ($0.68 per share) in 1995. In 1997 and 1995, income

before extraordinary items related to debt refinancings was 

$621.5 million ($1.25 per share) 

and $328.3 million ($0.68 

per share), respectively.

Safeway’s 1997 income

statement includes Vons’

operating results since the

second quarter plus the effect

of Safeway’s 34.4% equity

interest in Vons in the first

quarter, while the 1996

income statement reflects

Safeway’s equity interest in

Vons for the full year. 

In order to facilitate an 

understanding of the

Company’s operations, 

this financial review presents certain pro forma information based

on the 1997 and 1996 combined historical financial statements of

the two companies as if the Merger had been effective as of the

beginning of each of the years discussed. See Note B to the

Company’s 1997 Consolidated Financial Statements

During the second quarter of 1997, Safeway was engaged

in a 75-day labor dispute affecting 74 stores in the Alberta,

Canada operating area. The Company estimates that the

Alberta strike reduced 1997 net income by approximately

$0.04 per share, and labor disputes in the British Columbia

and Denver operating areas reduced 1996 net income by an

estimated $0.07 per share. 

A nine-day strike during the second quarter of 1995 affected

208 stores in northern California. The Company estimates that this

dispute reduced 1995 earnings by approximately $0.01 per share. 

Sales Sales for the 53 weeks of 1997 were $22.5 billion com-

pared to $17.3 billion for the 52 weeks of 1996. The increase was

due primarily to the Vons merger and the additional week in 1997.

Identical-store sales (stores operating the entire year in both 1997

and 1996, excluding replacement stores but including Vons for 41

weeks in both years) increased 1.3% while comparable-store

sales, which includes replacement stores, increased 2.2%. The

effects of the second-quarter strike in Alberta weakened 1997

identical and comparable-store sales comparisons. Lack of inflation

also softened 1997 sales comparisons. Excluded from identical

and comparable-store sales comparisons are 86 stores in British

Columbia that were closed during a strike-lockout for a portion of

the second and third quarters of 1996.

Gross Profit  Gross profit represents the portion of sales revenue

remaining after deducting the costs of inventory sold during the

period, including purchase and distribution costs. Gross profit was

28.53% of sales in 1997 compared to 27.65% in 1996 and

27.40% in 1995. On a pro forma basis, gross profit increased to

28.63% of sales in 1997 from 28.20% in 1996, primarily due to

improvements in buying practices and product mix. In addition,

the Company recorded LIFO income of $6.1 million in 1997 com-

pared to LIFO expense of $4.9 million in 1996 reflecting slight

deflation in 1997. 

Operating and Administrative Expense Operating and administra-

tive expense was 22.84% of sales in 1997 compared to 22.48% in

1996 and 22.96% in 1995. Safeway’s operating and administrative

expense-to-sales ratio has increased compared to 1996 because 

Financial Review

95 96 97

$328.3 $460.6 $621.5

Income Before

Extraordinary Loss


(IN MILLIONS)

Portions of

1997 Sales Dollar

Operating Profit: 5.69%

Operating & Administrative

Expense: 22.84%

Costs of Goods Sold: 71.47%
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Vons’ operating and administrative expense ratio has historically

been higher than Safeway’s (partially due to the high cost of real

estate and labor in southern California). In addition, goodwill

amortization has increased by approximately $30 million as a

result of the Merger. On a pro forma basis, operating and

administrative expense declined 35 basis points to 22.95% 

of sales in 1997, from 23.30% in 1996.

Interest Expense Interest expense increased to $241.2 million in

1997 from $178.5 million in 1996 because of the debt incurred

during the second quarter of 1997 to repurchase stock in con-

junction with the Merger. 

During 1997, Safeway recorded an extraordinary loss of $64.1

million ($0.13 per share) for the repurchase of $589.0 million of

Safeway’s public debt, $285.5 million of Vons’ public debt, and

$40.0 million of medium-term notes. The extraordinary loss rep-

resents the payment of premiums on retired debt and the write-

off of deferred finance costs, net of the related tax benefits.

Safeway financed this repurchase with a public offering of $600

million of senior debt securities and the balance with commercial

paper. The refinancing extends Safeway’s overall long-term debt

maturities, increases financial flexibility and, based on current

interest rates, is expected to reduce annual interest expense.

In May 1997, Safeway entered into interest rate cap agree-

ments which expire in 1999 and entitle the Company to receive

from counterparties the amounts, if any, by which interest at

LIBOR on an $850 million notional amount exceeds 7%. The

unamortized cost to purchase the cap agreements was $2.5 

million at year-end 1997. 

As of year-end 1997, the Company had effectively converted

$135.1 million of its floating rate debt to fixed interest rate debt

through the use of interest rate swap agreements. Interest rate

swap and cap agreements increased interest expense by $3.3

million in 1997, $3.0 million in 1996 and $0.3 million in 1995.

The significant terms of swap and cap agreements outstanding

at year-end 1997 are described in Note E to the Company’s

1997 consolidated financial statements.

Equity in Earnings of Unconsolidated Affiliates Safeway’s invest-

ment in unconsolidated affiliates consists of a 49% ownership

interest in Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V. (“Casa Ley”), which operates

74 food and general merchandise stores in western Mexico.

Through the first quarter of 1997, Safeway also held a 34.4%

interest in Vons. Safeway records its equity in earnings of

unconsolidated affiliates on a one-quarter delay basis. 

Income from Safeway’s equity investment in Casa Ley

increased to $22.7 million in 1997 from $18.8 million in 

1996 and $8.6 million in 1995. For much of 1995, Mexico

suffered from high interest rates and inflation which adversely

affected Casa Ley. Since 1996, interest rates and inflation 

in Mexico moderated and Casa Ley’s financial results have

gradually improved.

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates included

Safeway’s share of Vons’ earnings of $12.2 million in the first

quarter of 1997, $31.2 million in 1996 and $18.3 million in 1995.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash flow from operations was $1,221.6 million in 1997,

$825.2 million in 1996 and $657.7 million in 1995. Net cash

flow from operations increased in 1997 and 1996 largely due to

increased net income.

Cash flow used by investing activities was $607.7 million 

in 1997, $482.3 million in 1996 and $425.7 million in 1995.

The increase in cash flow used by investing activities in 1997 is

primarily the result of increased capital expenditures to open 

37 new stores, complete 181 remodels, complete construction

of a manufacturing plant in California and begin work on a new

distribution center in Maryland.

Cash flow used by financing activities was $614.6 million 

in 1997, $337.5 million in 1996 and $218.4 million in 1995,

reflecting Safeway’s reduction in total debt in 1995 and 1996,

followed by increased borrowing related to the Merger in 1997.

Net cash flow from operations as presented on the

Statement of Cash Flows is an important measure of cash gen-

erated by the Company’s operating activities. Operating cash

flow, as defined below, is similar to net cash flow from opera-

tions because it excludes certain non-cash items. However,

operating cash flow also excludes interest expense and income

taxes. Management believes that operating cash flow is relevant

because it assists investors in evaluating Safeway’s ability to

service its debt by providing a commonly used measure of cash

available to pay interest. Operating cash flow also facilitates

comparisons of Safeway’s results of operations with companies

having different capital structures. Other companies may define

operating cash flow differently, and as a result, such measures

may not be comparable to Safeway’s operating cash flow.

Safeway’s computation of operating cash flow is as follows 

(dollars in millions):
1997 1996 1995

Income before income taxes
and extraordinary loss $1,076.3 $ 767.6 $ 556.5

LIFO expense (income) (6.1) 4.9 9.5
Interest expense 241.2 178.5 199.8
Depreciation 

and amortization 455.8 338.5 329.7
Equity in earnings of 

unconsolidated affiliates (34.9) (50.0) (26.9)
■■ ■■Operating cash flow $1,732.3 $1,239.5 $1,068.6
■■ ■■

As a percent of sales 7.70% 7.18% 6.52%
■■ ■■

As a multiple of interest expense 7.18x 6.94x 5.35x
■■ ■■

Total debt increased to $3.34 billion at year-end 1997 from

$1.98 billion at year-end 1996 due primarily to the Merger. Annual

debt maturities over the next five years are set forth in Note C of

the Company’s 1997 Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Based upon the current level of operations, Safeway believes

that operating cash flow and other sources of liquidity, including

borrowings under Safeway’s commercial paper program and the

Bank Credit Agreement (defined below), will be adequate to meet

anticipated requirements for working capital, capital expendi-

tures, interest payments and scheduled principal payments for 



the foreseeable future. There can be no assurance, however, 

that the Company’s business will continue to generate cash flow

at or above current levels. The Bank Credit Agreement is used

primarily as a backup facility to the commercial paper program. 

Repurchase and Acquisition of Common Stock Equivalents

In connection with the Merger, Safeway repurchased 64.0 mil-

lion shares of Safeway common stock from a partnership affiliat-

ed with KKR & Co., L.L.C. (“KKR”) at $21.50 per share, for an

aggregate purchase price of $1.376 billion (the “Repurchase”).

To finance the Repurchase, Safeway entered into a new $3.0

billion bank credit agreement (the “Bank Credit Agreement”)

that provides for, among other things, increased borrowing

capacity, extended maturities and the opportunity to pay lower

interest rates based on interest coverage ratios or public debt

ratings. The Company subsequently began a commercial paper

program, which reduced its outstanding bank debt. As a result

of the stock repurchase, Safeway increased its debt and interest

expense, but also reduced the number of common shares out-

standing used to calculate earnings per share. This reduction of

64.0 million shares partially offsets the increase of 83.2 million

shares issued pursuant to the Merger.

At year-end 1997, warrants (the “SSI Warrants”) to purchase

30.7 million shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.50

per share were held by SSI Equity Associates, L.P. (“SSI”), a lim-

ited partnership whose sole assets consist of the SSI Warrants.

The SSI Warrants are exercisable through November 15, 2001.

SSI Partners, L.P., an affiliate of KKR, is the general partner of

SSI. During 1996 and 1995, the Company acquired 64.5% of

the partnership interests in SSI for $322.7 million, which was

accounted for as a reduction to stockholders’ equity. 

Stock Offerings

In December 1997, the Company completed the public offering

of 50.0 million shares of common stock owned by affiliates of

KKR, including 5.73 million shares issued upon the exercise of

SSI Warrants. In January 1998, the underwriters to the offering

exercised their over-allotment options for an additional 6.5 million

shares of common stock, including 0.8 million issued upon the

exercise of SSI Warrants. In connection with the offering, SSI

Warrants to purchase 11.9 million shares attributable to the limit-

ed partnership interests owned by Safeway were canceled.

The Company received proceeds totalling $3.3 million for

the exercise of the warrants. Affiliates of KKR received the

balance of proceeds from the stock offering. After the offering,

two limited partnerships affiliated with KKR own 104.5 million

shares of Safeway common stock, and SSI Equity Associates,

L.P. holds SSI Warrants to purchase 28.3 million shares of

Safeway common stock.

In February 1996, the Company completed the public offer-

ing of 45.9 million shares of common stock owned by affiliates of

KKR, including 4.4 million shares issued upon the exercise of

SSI Warrants and 0.4 million shares issued upon the exercise of

employee stock options. Also in 1996, SSI Warrants to purchase

4.6 million shares attributable to the limited partnership interests

owned by Safeway were canceled. The Company received pro-

ceeds of $2.4 million for the exercise price of the options and

warrants. Affiliates of KKR and the option holder received the bal-

ance of proceeds from the stock offering.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements

relating to, among other things, capital expenditures, cost reduc-

tion and operating improvements. Such statements are subject

to inherent uncertainties and risks, including among others:

business and economic conditions generally in the Company’s

operating regions; pricing pressures and other competitive 

factors; results of the Company’s programs to reduce costs; 

the ability to integrate Vons and continue to achieve operating

improvements; relations with union bargaining units; and the

availability and terms of financing. Consequently, actual events

and results may vary significantly from those included in or 

contemplated or implied by such statements. 
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53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(In millions, except per-share amounts) 1997 1996 1995

■■■ ■■■

Sales $ 22,483.8 $ 17,269.0 $ 16,397.5

Cost of goods sold (16,069.1) (12,494.8) (11,905.1)
■■■ ■■■

Gross profit 6,414.7 4,774.2 4,492.4

Operating and administrative expense (5,135.0) (3,882.5) (3,765.0)
■■■ ■■■

Operating profit 1,279.7 891.7 727.4

Interest expense (241.2) (178.5) (199.8)

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 34.9 50.0 26.9

Other income, net 2.9 4.4 2.0
■■■ ■■■

Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss 1,076.3 767.6 556.5

Income taxes (454.8) (307.0) (228.2)
■■■ ■■■

Income before extraordinary loss 621.5 460.6 328.3 

Extraordinary loss related to early retirement of debt, 

net of income tax benefit of $41.1 and $1.3 (64.1) – (2.0)
■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 557.4 $ 460.6 $ 326.3
■■■ ■■■

Basic earnings per share:

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.35 $ 1.06 $ 0.77

Extraordinary loss (0.14) – –
■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 1.21 $ 1.06 $ 0.77
■■■ ■■■

Diluted earnings per share:

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 0.97 $ 0.68

Extraordinary loss (0.13) – –
■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 1.12 $ 0.97 $ 0.68
■■■ ■■■

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic 462.3 436.0 423.9

Weighted average shares outstanding – diluted 497.7 475.7 481.2

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income
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Year-End Year-End
(In millions) 1997 1996

■■■

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and equivalents $ 77.2 $ 79.7

Receivables 180.8 160.9

Merchandise inventories, net of LIFO 

reserve of $73.1 and $79.2 1,613.2 1,283.3

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 158.5 130.5
■■■

Total current assets 2,029.7 1,654.4
■■■

Property:

Land 722.2 438.3

Buildings 1,719.9 1,286.9

Leasehold improvements 1,247.3 957.2

Fixtures and equipment 2,663.1 2,108.5

Property under capital leases 329.2 278.7
■■■

6,681.7 5,069.6

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 2,566.4 2,313.2
■■■

Total property, net 4,115.3 2,756.4

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $157.0 and $116.4 1,824.7 312.5

Prepaid pension costs 341.4 328.7

Investments in unconsolidated affiliates 97.7 362.4

Other assets 85.1 130.8
■■■

Total assets $8,493.9 $5,545.2
■■■

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
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Year-End Year-End
(In millions, except share and per-share amounts) 1997 1996

■■■

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of notes and debentures $ 277.4 $ 237.3

Current obligations under capital leases 22.0 18.4

Accounts payable 1,391.8 1,153.1

Accrued salaries and wages 310.5 231.2

Other accrued liabilities 536.9 390.0
■■■

Total current liabilities 2,538.6 2,030.0
■■■

Long-term debt:

Notes and debentures 2,817.8 1,568.1

Obligations under capital leases 223.1 160.4
■■■

Total long-term debt 3,040.9 1,728.5

Deferred income taxes 297.0 223.8

Accrued claims and other liabilities 468.4 376.1
■■■

Total liabilities 6,344.9 4,358.4
■■■

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 

750 shares authorized; 537.4 and 442.8 shares outstanding 5.3 4.4

Additional paid-in capital 2,467.4 748.1

Cumulative translation adjustments 0.6 12.0

Retained earnings 1,315.0 745.0
■■■

3,788.3 1,509.5

Less: Treasury stock at cost; 61.2 shares in 1997 (1,316.6) –

Unexercised warrants purchased (322.7) (322.7)
■■■

Total stockholders’ equity 2,149.0 1,186.8
■■■

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $8,493.9 $5,545.2
■■■

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(In millions) 1997 1996 1995

■■■■ ■■■

Cash Flow from Operations

Net income $ 557.4 $ 460.6 $ 326.3

Reconciliation to net cash flow from operations:

Extraordinary loss related to early retirement of debt,

before income tax benefit 105.2 – 3.3

Depreciation and amortization 455.8 338.5 329.7

Amortization of deferred finance costs 1.7 1.8 4.0

Deferred income taxes 55.9 113.9 (15.8)

LIFO (income) expense (6.1) 4.9 9.5

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates (34.9) (50.0) (26.9)

Net pension (income) expense (4.1) 4.2 7.6

Contributions to Canadian pension plan (10.0) (10.6) (10.3) 

Increase (decrease) in accrued claims 

and other liabilities (13.9) (17.6) 19.0

Loss (gain) on property retirements (12.4) (12.6) 20.4

Changes in working capital items:

Receivables 25.8 (8.5) (3.8)

Inventories at FIFO cost 37.5 (99.3) (55.4)

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2.7 (35.1) (2.9)

Payables and accruals 61.0 135.0 53.0
■■■ ■■■■

Net cash flow from operations 1,221.6 825.2 657.7
■■■ ■■■■

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash paid for property additions (758.2) (541.8) (450.9)

Proceeds from sale of property and operations 75.6 60.8 54.8

Net cash acquired in acquisition 

of The Vons Companies, Inc. 55.3 – –

Other 19.6 (1.3) (29.6)
■■■ ■■■■

Net cash flow used by investing activities (607.7) (482.3) (425.7)
■■■ ■■■■

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
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53 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
(In millions) 1997 1996 1995

■■■■ ■■■

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Additions to short-term borrowings $ 414.5 $ 227.2 $ 183.7

Payments on short-term borrowings (287.5) (280.4) (131.5)

Additions to long-term borrowings 4,254.3 387.1 708.1

Payments on long-term borrowings (3,553.5) (552.0) (787.6)

Purchase of treasury stock (1,376.0) – –

Purchase of unexercised warrants – (126.5) (196.2)

Net proceeds from exercise of warrants and stock options 43.9 12.6 12.8

Premiums paid on early retirement of debt (97.7) – (3.3)

Other (12.6) (5.5) (4.4)
■■■ ■■■

Net cash flow used by financing activities (614.6) (337.5) (218.4)
■■■ ■■■

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash (1.8) (0.5) 0.5
■■■ ■■■

Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (2.5) 4.9 14.1

Cash and Equivalents

Beginning of year 79.7 74.8 60.7
■■■ ■■■

End of year $ 77.2 $ 79.7 $ 74.8
■■■ ■■■

Other Cash Flow Information

Cash payments during the year for:

Interest $ 263.6 $ 181.8 $ 203.0

Income taxes, net of refunds 214.6 156.7 213.0

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

Stock issued for acquisition of 

The Vons Companies, Inc. 1,693.0 – –

Tax benefit from stock options exercised 42.4 51.9 16.6

Mortgage notes assumed in property additions 0.9 – –

Capital lease obligations entered into 37.3 15.5 13.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



Retained
Additional Cumulative Earnings Unexercised Total

Common Stock Paid-in Translation (Accumulated Treasury Stock Warrants Stockholders’
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■

(In millions) Shares Amount Capital Adjustments Deficit) Shares Cost Purchased Equity

Balance, year-end 1994 419.2 $4.2 $ 652.4 $ 29.1 $ (41.9) $ 643.8

Options and warrants 
exercised 8.0 – 29.4 – – 29.4

Stock bonuses 0.2 – 1.0 – – 1.0
Unexercised warrants 

purchased – – – – – $(196.2) (196.2)
Net income – – – – 326.3 – 326.3
Translation adjustments – – – (8.8) – – (8.8)

Balance, year-end 1995 427.4 4.2 682.8 20.3 284.4 (196.2) 795.5

Options and warrants 
exercised 15.4 0.2 64.3 – – – 64.5

Stock bonuses – – 1.0 – – – 1.0
Unexercised warrants 

purchased – – – – – (126.5) (126.5)
Net income – – – – 460.6 – 460.6
Translation adjustments – – – (8.3) – – (8.3)

Balance, year-end 1996 442.8 4.4 748.1 12.0 745.0 (322.7) 1,186.8

Shares issued 
for acquisition of 
The Vons Companies, Inc. 83.2 0.8 1,692.2 – – – 1,693.0

Equity in Vons’ pre-merger 
earnings due to timing 
of recording earnings – – – – 12.6 – 12.6

Treasury stock purchased – – – – – (64.0) $(1,376.0) – (1,376.0)
Options and warrants 

exercised 11.4 0.1 26.8 – – 2.8 59.4 – 86.3
Stock bonuses – – 0.3 – – – – – 0.3
Net income – – – – 557.4 – – – 557.4
Translation adjustments – – – (11.4) – – (11.4)

Balance, year-end 1997 537.4 $5.3 $2,467.4 $ 0.6 $1,315.0 (61.2) $(1,316.6) $(322.7) $ 2,149.0

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
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Note A:  The Company and Significant Accounting Policies

The Company Safeway Inc. (“Safeway” or the “Company”) is

the second largest food and drug chain in North America based

on sales, with 1,368 stores, including 315 Vons stores, at year-

end 1997. 

The Company’s U.S. retail operating areas are located princi-

pally in Washington, Oregon, northern California, southern

California, Arizona, Colorado and the Mid-Atlantic region. The

Company also has Canadian retail operations which are located

primarily in British Columbia, Alberta and Manitoba/Saskatchewan.

In support of its retail operations, the Company has an exten-

sive network of distribution, manufacturing and food process-

ing facilities.

As discussed in Note B, on April 8, 1997, Safeway acquired

The Vons Companies, Inc. (“Vons”) pursuant to which the

Company issued 83.2 million shares of Safeway common stock

for all of the shares of Vons stock that it did not already own (the

“Merger”). Vons is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Safeway,

and as of the beginning of the second quarter of 1997, Safeway’s

consolidated financial statements include Vons’ financial results.

In addition to the Safeway and Vons operations, the Company

has a 49% ownership interest in Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V. (“Casa

Ley”), which operates 74 food and general merchandise stores 

in western Mexico. 

Stock Split In January 1998, Safeway’s Board of Directors

authorized a two-for-one split of the Company’s common stock.

The stock split was effected by a distribution on February 25,

1998 of one additional share for each share owned by stock-

holders of record on February 10, 1998. Share and per-share

amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements

and related notes have been restated to reflect the stock split. 

Basis of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements

include Safeway Inc., a Delaware corporation, and all majority-

owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and

balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The Company’s

investment in Casa Ley is reported using the equity method.

Prior to the Merger, the Company’s investment in Vons was

reported using the equity method.

Fiscal Year The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturday

nearest December 31. The last three fiscal years consist of the

53-week period ended January 3, 1998 and 52-week periods

ended December 28, 1996 and December 30, 1995. 

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues

and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

Translation of Foreign Currencies Assets and liabilities of the

Company’s Canadian subsidiaries and Mexican unconsolidated

affiliate are translated into U.S. dollars at year-end rates of

exchange, and income and expenses are translated at average

rates during the year. Adjustments resulting from translating

financial statements into U.S. dollars are reported as cumulative

translation adjustments and are shown net of applicable income

taxes as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. 

Merchandise Inventories Merchandise inventory of $1,118 million

at year-end 1997 and $756 million at year-end 1996 is valued at

the lower of cost on a last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) basis or market

value. Such LIFO inventory had a replacement or current cost of

$1,191 million at year-end 1997 and $835 million at year-end

1996. The remaining inventory is valued at the lower of cost on a

first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) basis or market value. FIFO cost of inven-

tory approximates replacement or current cost. In the United

States, inventory on a FIFO basis includes meat, produce and

inventory of manufacturing operations, except for Vons, which 

values all inventory on the LIFO basis. All inventories of the

Canadian subsidiaries are valued on the FIFO basis. 

Application of the LIFO method resulted in a decrease in

cost of goods sold of $6.1 million in 1997, and increases of

$4.9 million in 1996 and $9.5 million in 1995. Liquidations 

of LIFO layers during the three years reported did not have a 

significant effect on the results of operations.

Property and Depreciation Property is stated at cost. Property

acquired in the Merger approximates fair values as of the Merger

date. Depreciation expense on buildings and equipment is com-

puted on the straight-line method using the following lives:

Stores and other buildings 10 - 30 years

Fixtures and equipment 3 - 15 years

Property under capital leases is amortized on a straight-line

basis over the remaining terms of the leases. Leasehold improve-

ments include buildings constructed on leased land and

improvements to leased buildings. Leasehold improvements are

amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the remain-

ing terms of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the assets.

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Goodwill Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over 

40 years. Goodwill amortization was $41.8 million in 1997 and

$10.4 million in both 1996 and 1995. Goodwill amortization

increased in 1997 due to the Merger with Vons, discussed 

in Note B. 

Self-insurance The Company is primarily self-insured for workers’

compensation, automobile, and general liability costs. The self-

insurance liability is determined actuarially, based on claims filed

and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. The pre-

sent value of such claims was accrued using a discount rate of

5.5% in both 1997 and 1996. The current portion of the self-

insurance liability of $96.3 million at year-end 1997 and $65.1

million at year-end 1996 is included in other accrued liabilities in

the consolidated balance sheets. The long-term portion of $230.7

million at year-end 1997 and $168.7 million at year-end 1996 is

included in accrued claims and other liabilities. Claims payments

were $100.0 million in 1997, $66.7 million in 1996 and $71.4

million in 1995. The total undiscounted liability was $365.5 mil-

lion at year-end 1997 and $265.8 million at year-end 1996.

Income Taxes The Company provides a deferred tax expense or

benefit equal to the change in the deferred tax liability during

the year in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

Deferred income taxes represent tax credit carryforwards and

future net tax effects resulting from temporary differences

between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and 

liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which

the differences are expected to reverse. 

Statement of Cash Flows Short-term investments with original

maturities of less than three months are considered to be cash

equivalents. Borrowings with original maturities of less than

three months are presented net of related repayments. 

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments As discussed in Note E,

the Company has entered into interest rate swap and cap agree-

ments to limit the exposure of its floating interest rate debt to

changes in market interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements

involve the exchange with a counterparty of fixed and floating

rate interest payments periodically over the life of the agreements

without exchange of the underlying notional principal amounts.

The differential to be paid or received is recognized over the life

of the agreements as an adjustment to interest expense. 

Interest rate cap agreements lock in a maximum rate on a

notional principal amount by paying a fee to a counterparty in

exchange for the counterparty’s promise to pay to Safeway the 

difference between a fixed rate and a floating rate of interest. 

The Company’s counterparties are major finan-

cial institutions. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments Generally accepted account-

ing principles require the disclosure of the fair value of certain

financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance

sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. Safeway

estimated the fair values presented below using appropriate 

valuation methodologies and market information available as 

of year-end. Considerable judgment is required to develop 

estimates of fair value, and the estimates presented are not 

necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could

realize in a current market exchange. The use of different 

market assumptions or estimation methodologies could have 

a material effect on the estimated fair values. Additionally, these

fair values were estimated at year-end, and current estimates of

fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate

the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable

and short-term debt.  The carrying amount of these items approxi-

mates fair value.

Long-term debt. Market values quoted on the New York Stock

Exchange are used to estimate the fair value of publicly traded

debt. To estimate the fair value of debt issues that are not quoted

on an exchange, the Company uses those interest rates that are

currently available to it for issuance of debt with similar terms

and remaining maturities. At year-end 1997, the estimated fair

value of debt was $3.2 billion compared to a carrying value of

$3.1 billion. At year-end 1996, the estimated fair value of debt

was $1.9 billion compared to a carrying value of $1.8 billion. 

Off-balance sheet instruments. The fair value of interest rate

swap and cap agreements is the amount at which they could

be settled based on estimates obtained from dealers. At year-

end 1997 and 1996, net unrealized losses on such agreements

were $0.4 million and $2.0 million. Since the Company intends

to hold these agreements as hedges for the term of the agree-

ments, the market risk associated with changes in interest rates

should not be significant. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets In 1996, Safeway adopted the

provisions of SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of

Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of.”

SFAS No. 121 establishes recognition and measurement criteria

for impairment losses when the Company no longer expects to

recover the carrying value of a long-lived asset. Upon reaching

the decision to close a store or other facility, the Company

accrues estimated future losses, if any, which may include lease

payments or other costs of holding the facility, net of estimated

future income. As of year-end 1997, Safeway had an accrued

liability of $72.0 million for the anticipated future closure of 42

stores and $19.7 million for the anticipated future closure of

other facilities.
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Stock-Based Compensation Safeway accounts for stock-based

awards to employees using the intrinsic value method in accor-

dance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,

“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Safeway elected

to adopt the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123,

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” in 1996. 

New Accounting Pronouncement In 1997, the Financial

Accounting Standards Board issued two new pronounce- 

ments, SFAS No. 130 “Reporting Comprehensive Income” and

SFAS No. 131 “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise

and Related Information.” SFAS No. 130 requires companies to

report by major components and as a single total, the change in

its net assets during the period from non-owner sources. SFAS

No. 131 establishes annual and interim reporting standards for

a Company’s operating segments and related disclosures about 

its products, services, geographic areas and major customers.

SFAS Nos. 130 and 131 are effective for fiscal years beginning

after December 15, 1997. Adoption of these new pronounce-

ments will not impact the financial position, results of operations

or cash flows of Safeway and any effect will be limited to the

form and content of its disclosures.

Earnings Per Share  In the fourth quarter of 1997, Safeway

adopted SFAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share” (“SFAS No. 128”).

SFAS No. 128 replaces current reporting requirements for earn-

ings per share (“EPS”) and requires a dual presentation of basic

and diluted EPS. Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income

by the weighted average shares outstanding for the period.

Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if

contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted to

common stock. Prior periods have been restated to conform to

SFAS No. 128. 

Note B:  Merger with Vons

On April 8, 1997, Safeway completed the Merger with Vons 

pursuant to which the Company issued 83.2 million shares of

Safeway common stock for all of the shares of Vons stock that it

did not already own. The Merger was accounted for using the 

purchase method and resulted in additional goodwill of $1.5 billion

which is being amortized over 40 years. Vons is now a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Safeway, and as of the beginning of the 

second quarter of 1997, Safeway’s consolidated financial state-

ments include Vons’ financial results. In connection with the

Merger, Safeway repurchased 64.0 million shares of Safeway 

common stock from a partnership affiliated with KKR & Co., L.L.C.

(“KKR”) at $21.50 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of

$1.376 billion. To finance the repurchase, Safeway used borrow-

ings under the Bank Credit Agreement as described in Note C. 

The following unaudited pro forma summary financial infor-

mation combines the consolidated results of operations of

Safeway and Vons as if the Merger and related stock repurchase

had occurred as of the beginning of each of the years present-

ed. The following pro forma financial information is presented for

informational purposes only and may not be indicative of what

the actual consolidated results of operations would have been if

the Merger had been effective earlier (in millions, except per-

share amounts):
Pro Forma

53 Weeks 52 Weeks
1997 1996

Sales $23,735.3 $22,625.0
Income before extraordinary loss 632.6 435.6
Net income 568.5 435.6
Diluted earnings per share:

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 0.87
Net income 1.12 0.87

Allocation of purchase price (in millions): 
Fair value of assets acquired $ 3,115.8
Fair value of liabilities assumed (1,166.9)
Stock issued (1,693.0)
Safeway’s equity investment in Vons (311.2)
Net cash acquired $ (55.3)

Note C :  Financing

Notes and debentures were composed of the following at year-

end (in millions):
1997 1996

Bank Credit Agreement, unsecured $ 238.2 $ 360.6
Commercial paper 1,473.5 –
9.30% Senior Secured Debentures 

due 2007 24.3 70.7
10% Senior Subordinated Notes 

due 2001, unsecured 79.9 241.4
9.875% Senior Subordinated Debentures 

due 2007, unsecured 24.2 110.0
9.65% Senior Subordinated Debentures 

due 2004, unsecured 81.2 228.2
9.35% Senior Subordinated Notes 

due 1999, unsecured 66.7 161.5
7.45% Senior Debentures 

due 2027, unsecured 150.0 –
7.00% Senior Notes due 2007, unsecured 250.0 –
6.85% Senior Notes due 2004, unsecured 200.0 –
10% Senior Notes due 2002, unsecured 6.1 59.1
Mortgage notes payable, secured 150.8 306.4
Other notes payable, unsecured 114.8 119.0
Medium-term notes, unsecured 25.5 65.5
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 210.0 83.0

■■
3,095.2 1,805.4

Less current maturities (277.4) (237.3)
■■

Long-term portion $ 2,817.8 $1,568.1
■■
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Bank Credit Agreement During the second quarter of 1997, the

Company entered into a new $3.0 billion bank credit agreement

(the “Bank Credit Agreement”). Of the $3.0 billion credit line, 

$2.0 billion matures in 2002 and has two one-year extension

options, and $1.0 billion is renewable annually through 2004. 

The restrictive covenants of the Bank Credit Agreement limit

Safeway with respect to, among other things, creating liens upon

its assets and disposing of material amounts of assets other than 

in the ordinary course of business. Safeway also is required to

meet certain financial tests under the Bank Credit Agreement. 

At year-end 1997, the Company had total unused borrowing

capacity under the Bank Credit Agreement of $2.7 billion.

U.S. borrowings under the Bank Credit Agreement carry

interest at one of the following rates selected by the Company:

(i) the prime rate; (ii) a rate based on rates at which Eurodollar

deposits are offered to first-class banks by the lenders in the

Bank Credit Agreement plus a pricing margin based on the

Company’s debt rating or interest coverage ratio (the “Pricing

Margin”); or (iii) rates quoted at the discretion of the lenders.

Canadian borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars carry interest

at one of the following rates selected by the Company: (a) the

Canadian base rate; or (b) the Canadian Eurodollar rate plus the

Pricing Margin. Canadian borrowings denominated in Canadian

dollars carry interest at one of the following rates selected by the

Company: (i) the Canadian prime rate or (ii) the rate for

Canadian bankers acceptances plus the Pricing Margin. 

The weighted average interest rate on borrowings under the

Bank Credit Agreement was 6.00% during 1997. At year-end

1997, the weighted average interest rate on borrowings under the

Bank Credit Agreement was 5.90%. 

Commercial Paper During the third quarter of 1997, Safeway

issued commercial paper in the U.S. The proceeds were used to

pay down borrowings under the Bank Credit Agreement.

Commercial paper outstanding at year-end 1997 is classified as

long-term because the Company intends to and has the ability to

refinance these borrowings on a long-term basis through either

continued commercial paper borrowings or utilization of the Bank

Credit Agreement, which matures in 2002. The weighted average

interest rate on commercial paper borrowings was 5.79% during

1997 and 6.15% at year-end 1997. The Company maintains

unused borrowing capacity under the Bank Credit Agreement 

at least equal to the amount of commercial paper outstanding.

Senior Secured Indebtedness The 9.30% Senior Secured

Debentures due 2007 are secured by a Deed of Trust which

created a lien on the land, buildings and equipment owned by

Safeway at its distribution center in Tracy, California.

Senior Subordinated Indebtedness The 10% Senior Subordinated

Notes due 2001, 9.875% Senior Subordinated Debentures due

2007, 9.65% Senior Subordinated Debentures due 2004 and

9.35% Senior Subordinated Notes due 1999 (collectively the

“Subordinated Securities”) are subordinated in right of payment

to, among other things, the Company’s borrowings under the

Bank Credit Agreement, the 9.30% Senior Secured Indebtedness,

the Senior Debt (defined below) and mortgage notes payable. 

Senior Unsecured Indebtedness During the fourth quarter of

1997, Safeway issued new senior unsecured debt securities

consisting of 7.45% Senior Debentures due 2027, 7.00% Senior

Notes due 2007, and 6.85% Senior Notes due 2004 (collectively,

the “Senior Debt”). The Company used the proceeds from this

debt to redeem a portion of the Subordinated Securities. 

Mortgage Notes Payable  Mortgage notes payable at year-end

1997 have remaining terms ranging from one to 12 years, have

a weighted average interest rate of 9.97% and are secured by

properties with a net book value of approximately $300 million.

Other Notes Payable  Other notes payable at year-end 1997 have

remaining terms ranging from two to 14 years and a weighted

average interest rate of 7.46%.

Redemptions During 1997, the Company redeemed

$588.5 million of the Subordinated Securities, $285.5 million

of Vons’ public debt and $40.0 million of medium-term notes

using proceeds from the Senior Debt and commercial paper

program. During 1995, Safeway retired $53.5 million of mort-

gage debt with proceeds from floating rate bank borrowings.

In connection with these redemptions, Safeway recorded

extraordinary losses of $64.1 million ($0.13 per share) in

1997 and $2.0 million in 1995. The extraordinary losses rep-

resent the payment of redemption premiums and the write-off

of deferred finance costs, net of the related tax benefits. 

Annual Debt Maturities  As of year-end 1997, annual debt maturi-

ties were as follows (in millions):

1998 $ 277.4
1999 99.3
2000 24.9
2001 144.3
2002 1,738.6
Thereafter 810.7

$3,095.2

Letters of Credit  The Company had letters of credit of 

$226.9 million outstanding at year-end 1997 of which 

$64.0 million were issued under the Bank Credit Agreement.

The letters of credit are maintained primarily to support 

performance, payment, deposit or surety obligations of the

Company. The Company pays commitment fees ranging 

from 0.25% to 1.00% on the outstanding portion of the 

letters of credit.
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Note D:  Lease Obligations

Approximately two-thirds of the premises that the Company

occupies are leased. The Company had approximately 1,310

leases at year-end 1997, including approximately 180 which are

capitalized for financial reporting purposes. Most leases have

renewal options, some with terms and conditions similar to the

original lease, others with reduced rental rates during the option

periods. Certain of these leases contain options to purchase the

property at amounts that approximate fair market value.

As of year-end 1997, future minimum rental payments applica-

ble to non-cancelable capital and operating leases with remaining

terms in excess of one year were as follows (in millions):

Capital Operating
Leases Leases

1998 $ 48.7 $ 202.3
1999 44.5 198.6
2000 39.1 189.5
2001 35.4 173.5
2002 34.3 161.1
Thereafter 282.2 1,315.7

■■■
Total minimum lease payments 484.2 $2,240.7
Less amounts representing interest (239.1) 
Present value of net minimum lease 

payments 245.1 
Less current obligations (22.0) 
Long-term obligations $ 223.1

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable

capital and operating lease agreements have not been reduced

by minimum sublease rental income totalling $142.7 million.

Amortization expense for property under capital leases was

$21.1 million in 1997, $17.9 million in 1996 and $18.9 million

in 1995. Accumulated amortization of property under capital

leases was $153.4 million at year-end 1997 and $156.1 million

at year-end 1996.

The following schedule shows the composition of total rental

expense for all operating leases (in millions). In general, contin-

gent rentals are based on individual store sales.

1997 1996 1995
Property leases:

Minimum rentals $206.0 $138.2 $132.7
Contingent rentals 12.3 9.9 9.1
Less rental income

from subleases (13.4) (11.1) (11.1)
■■ ■■

204.9 137.0 130.7
Equipment leases 19.3 21.0 20.8

■■ ■■
$224.2 $158.0 $151.5

■■ ■■

Note E:  Interest Expense

Interest expense consisted of the following (in millions):

1997 1996 1995
Bank Credit Agreement $ 36.9 $ 16.4 $ 25.2
Commercial paper 43.8 – –
9.30% Senior Secured 

Debentures 5.3 6.6 6.6
10% Senior Subordinated Notes 19.3 24.1 24.1
9.875% Senior Subordinated 

Debentures 8.2 10.9 10.9
9.65% Senior Subordinated 

Debentures 17.8 22.0 22.0
9.35% Senior Subordinated Notes 12.3 15.3 16.1
7.45% Senior Debentures 3.4 – –
7.00% Senior Notes 5.2 – –
6.85% Senior Notes 4.1 – –
Vons Debentures 10.2 – –
10% Senior Notes 4.3 5.9 5.9
Mortgage notes payable 22.0 33.0 43.3
Other notes payable 9.9 11.9 11.3
Medium-term notes 4.4 6.0 7.1
Short-term bank borrowings 8.8 5.1 6.6
Obligations under capital leases 26.0 20.8 21.0
Amortization of deferred 

finance costs 1.7 1.8 4.0
Interest rate swap and 

cap agreements 3.3 3.0 0.3
Capitalized interest (5.7) (4.3) (4.6)

■■■■ ■■■■
$241.2 $178.5 $199.8

■■■■ ■■■■

In May 1997, Safeway entered into interest rate cap agree-

ments which expire in 1999 and entitle the Company to

receive from counterparties the amounts, if any, by which

interest at LIBOR on an $850 million notional amount exceeds

7%. The unamortized cost to purchase the cap agreements

was $2.5 million at year-end 1997.

Additionally, as of year-end 1997, the Company had effec-

tively converted $135.1 million of its floating rate debt to 

fixed interest rate debt through the use of interest rate swap

agreements. The significant terms of the swap agreements 

outstanding at year-end 1997 were as follows (dollars in 

millions):
Variable

Canada Interest
U.S. Fixed Fixed Rates

Notional Interest Interest to be Origination Expiration
Principal Rates Paid Rates Paid Received Date Date
$100.0 6.2% 5.8% 1997 2007

35.1 6.0% 4.9 1993 1998

$135.1

The variable interest rate received on the U.S. swap is based

on federal reserve rates quoted for commercial paper. The vari-

able interest rate received on the Canadian swap is based on the

average of bankers’ acceptance rates quoted by Canadian banks.

At year-end 1997 and 1996, net unrealized losses on the interest

rate swap agreements totaled $0.4 million and $2.0 million.

The notional principal amounts do not represent cash flows

and therefore are not subject to credit risk. The Company is

subject to risk from nonperformance of the counterparties to

the swap and cap agreements in the amount of any interest 

differential to be received. Because the Company monitors the
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credit ratings of its counterparties, which are limited to major

financial institutions, Safeway does not anticipate nonperfor-

mance by the counterparties. 

Since the Company intends to hold these agreements as

hedges for the terms of the agreements, the market risk associ-

ated with changes in interest rates should not be significant.

Note F: Capital Stock

Shares Authorized and Issued  Authorized preferred stock consists

of 25 million shares of which none was outstanding during 1997,

1996 or 1995. Authorized common stock consists of 750 million

shares at $0.01 par value. Common stock outstanding at year-end

1997 was 476.2 million shares (net of 61.2 million shares of 

treasury stock) and 442.8 million shares at year-end 1996.

Safeway’s stockholders will vote at the 1998 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders on a proposal to increase the authorized shares 

of common stock to 1.5 billion shares.

Stock Option Plans Under Safeway’s stock option plans, the

Company may grant incentive and non-qualified options to pur-

chase up to 98 million shares of common stock at an exercise

price equal to or greater than the fair market value at the grant

date, as determined by the Compensation and Stock Option

Committee of the Board of Directors. Options generally vest over

seven years. Vested options are exercisable in part or in full at any

time prior to the expiration date of 10 to 15 years from the date of

the grant. The stock option plans prohibit the transfer of options.

Activity in the Company’s stock option plans for the three-year period ended January 3, 1998 was as follows: 
Weighted-Average

Options Exercise Price

Outstanding, year-end 1994 50,626,048 $ 3.09
1995 Activity:

Granted 2,036,360 9.06
Canceled (1,558,648) 3.73
Exercised (6,773,116) 1.93

Outstanding, year-end 1995 44,330,644 3.52
1996 Activity:

Granted 3,991,984 16.65
Canceled (724,454) 5.07
Exercised (8,825,018) 2.04

Outstanding, year-end 1996 38,773,156 5.07
1997 Activity:

Granted 3,981,766 26.25
Converted Vons options 7,578,098 7.34
Canceled (962,522) 10.01
Exercised (8,373,270) 5.06

Outstanding, year-end 1997 40,997,228 7.53

Exercisable, year-end 1996 23,034,640 4.25

Exercisable, year-end 1997 25,887,094 4.75

Weighted-average fair value of options granted during the year:
1996 $ 7.64
1997 $12.43

The following table summarizes stock option information at year-end 1997:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
■■Range of Number Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Number Weighted-Average 

Exercise Prices of Options Remaining Contractual Life Exercise Price of Options Exercise Price

$ 0.50 to $ 0.50 2,320,000 7.15 years $ 0.50 2,320,000 $ 0.50
1.46 to 3.09 6,690,430 8.30 2.68 5,296,564 2.67
3.22 to 3.88 8,373,752 8.88 3.32 7,326,096 3.29
3.94 to 6.31 7,495,386 6.65 5.02 5,540,618 4.93
6.34 to 9.67 8,006,774 8.34 7.39 3,727,382 7.52

10.09 to 29.88 8,110,886 9.52 20.37 1,676,434 16.86
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■

$ 0.50 to $29.875 40,997,228 8.00 7.53 25,887,094 4.75
■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■

Options to purchase 15.2 million shares were available for grant at year-end 1997.
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Additional Stock Plan Information  As discussed in Note A, the

Company continues to account for its stock-based awards using

the intrinsic value method in accordance with Accounting

Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued

to Employees,” and its related interpretations. Accordingly, no

compensation expense has been recognized in the financial

statements for employee stock arrangements.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,

“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” requires the disclo-

sure of pro forma net income and earnings per share as if the

Company had adopted the fair value method as of the beginning

of fiscal 1995. Under SFAS 123, the fair value of stock-based

awards to employees is calculated through the use of option pric-

ing models, even though such models were developed to estimate

the fair value of freely tradable, fully transferable options without

vesting restrictions, which significantly differ from the Company’s

stock option awards. These models also require subjective

assumptions, including future stock price volatility and expected

time to exercise, which greatly affect the calculated values. The

Company’s calculations were made using the Black-Scholes

option pricing model with the following weighted average assump-

tions: seven to nine years expected life to vesting; stock volatility of

31% in 1997, 30% in 1996 and 29% in 1995; risk-free interest

rates of 6.29% in both 1997 and 1996 and 6.50% in 1995; and

no dividends during the expected term. 

The Company’s calculations are based on a single option val-

uation approach and forfeitures are recognized as they occur.

However, the impact of outstanding non-vested stock options

granted prior to 1995 has been excluded from the pro forma cal-

culation; accordingly, the pro forma results presented below are

not indicative of future period pro forma results. Had compensa-

tion cost for the Safeway’s stock option plans been determined

based on the fair value at the grant date for awards in 1995,

1996 and 1997, consistent with the provisions of SFAS No. 123,

the Company’s net income and earnings per share would have

been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

1997 1996 1995
Net income (in millions): 

As reported $557.4 $460.6 $326.3
Pro forma 553.5 459.0 325.8

Basic earnings per share:
As reported $ 1.21 $ 1.06 $ 0.77
Pro forma 1.20 1.05 0.77

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported $ 1.12 $ 0.97 $ 0.68
Pro forma 1.11 0.96 0.68

Repurchases of Common Stock and Warrants to Purchase

Common Stock  In connection with the Merger described in Note

B, the Company repurchased 64.0 million shares of Safeway

common stock from a partnership affiliated with KKR at $21.50

per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $1.376 billion. The

repurchased shares are reported as treasury shares in the accom-

panying balance sheet. When treasury shares are reissued, any

excess of the acquisition cost of the shares over the proceeds

received is charged to paid-in capital. At year-end 1997, KKR

owned 110.2 million shares of Safeway common stock.

At year-end 1997, warrants (the “SSI Warrants”) to purchase

30.7 million shares of the Company’s common stock at $0.50

per share were held by SSI Equity Associates, L.P. (“SSI”), a lim-

ited partnership whose sole assets consist of the SSI Warrants.

The SSI Warrants are exercisable through November 15, 2001.

SSI Partners, L.P., an affiliate of KKR, is the general partner of

SSI. During 1996 and 1995, the Company acquired 64.5% of

the partnership interests in SSI for $322.7 million with proceeds

from bank borrowings, which was accounted for as a reduction

to stockholders’ equity. 

Outstanding common stock and the effect of options and war-

rants at year-end 1997 are summarized as follows (in millions): 
Potential 
Proceeds

from
Shares Exercise

Common stock outstanding (net of
61.2 shares of treasury stock) 476.2

Options to purchase common stock 41.0 $ 308.7
SSI Warrants 10.9 5.4

■■
Total 528.1 $ 314.1

■■

Note G:  Taxes on Income

The components of income tax expense are as follows (in millions):

1997 1996 1995
Current:

Federal $303.6 $162.9 $157.9
State 57.5 30.7 29.9
Foreign 37.8 (0.5) 56.2

■■■■ ■■■■
398.9 193.1 244.0

■■■■ ■■■■
Deferred:

Federal 40.4 49.3 8.2
State 8.4 12.6 (0.8)
Foreign 7.1 52.0 (23.2)

■■■■ ■■■■
55.9 113.9 (15.8)

■■■■ ■■■■
$454.8 $307.0 $228.2

■■■■ ■■■■

Extraordinary losses are presented net of related tax benefits.

Therefore, 1997 and 1995 income tax expense in the above

table excludes tax benefits of $41.1 million and $1.3 million on

extraordinary losses related to the early retirement of debt. Tax

benefits from the exercise of employee stock options of $42.4

million in 1997, $51.9 million in 1996 and $16.6 million in

1995 were credited directly to paid-in capital and, therefore, are

excluded from income tax expense. 



The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the

U.S. federal statutory income tax rate to the Company’s income

taxes is as follows (dollars in millions):

1997 1996 1995
Statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
Income tax expense using 

federal statutory rate $376.7 $268.7 $194.8
State taxes on income net 

of federal benefit 42.8 28.1 18.9
Taxes provided on equity in 

earnings of unconsolidated 
affiliates at rates below the 
statutory rate (9.4) (10.5) (5.3)

Taxes on foreign earnings 
not permanently reinvested 8.9 7.3 6.2

Withholding tax on Canadian 
earnings not permanently 
reinvested – – (5.8)

Nondeductible expenses and 
amortization 13.6 3.2 4.2

Difference between statutory rate 
and foreign effective rate 10.6 11.1 1.0

Other accruals 11.6 (0.9) 14.2
■■■■ ■■■■

$454.8 $307.0 $228.2
■■■■ ■■■■

Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax

liability at year-end were as follows (in millions): 

1997 1996 1995
Deferred tax assets:
Workers’ compensation 

and other claims $ 138.8 $ 91.7 $ 102.9
Accruals not currently deductible 80.3 48.7 59.5
Accrued claims and other liabilities 48.8 47.4 48.3
Employee benefits 18.4 9.7 34.0
Canadian operating loss 

carryforward – 2.7 54.7
Other assets  14.6 6.0 14.5

■■■■ ■■■■
300.9 206.2 313.9

■■■■ ■■■■
Deferred tax liabilities:  
Property (280.8) (110.5) (124.3)
Prepaid pension costs (161.3) (149.9) (142.7)
LIFO inventory reserves (106.0) (66.8) (53.7)
Investments in unconsolidated 

affiliates (15.3) (48.1) (40.0)
Cumulative translation 

adjustments (16.2) (23.0) (24.6)
Other liabilities (18.3) (31.7) (37.1)

■■■■ ■■■■
(597.9) (430.0) (422.4)

■■■■ ■■■■
Net deferred tax liability $(297.0) $(223.8) $(108.5)

■■■■ ■■■■

Note H: Employee Benefit Plans and Collective 

Bargaining Aggreements

Retirement Plans  The Company maintains defined benefit, non-

contributory pension plans (the “Plans”) for substantially all of

its U.S. and Canadian employees not participating in multi-

employer pension plans. Benefits are generally based upon

years of service, age at retirement date and employee’s com-

pensation during the last years of employment. The Company’s

funding policy is to contribute annually the amount necessary

to satisfy the statutory funding standards. Through year-end

1997, the assets of Safeway’s U.S. Plans have been considered

fully funded for purposes of contribution requirements.

Accordingly, no Company contributions were made to the U.S.

Plans during the last three years. In 1997, 1996 and 1995, the

Company contributed $10.0 million, $10.6 million and $10.3

million to the Canadian Plan. Assets of the Plans are primarily

composed of marketable equity and interest-bearing securities. 

The Company has assumed the obligations of Vons’ benefit

plan. The actuarial assumptions for the existing Vons benefit

plans are comparable to the existing plans of the Company.

The Vons’ retirement plan has been combined with Safeway’s

for financial statement presentation.

Actuarial assumptions used to determine year-end Plan 

status were as follows:

1997 1996 1995
Discount rate used to 

determine the projected 
benefit obligation:

U.S. Plans 7.0% 7.5% 7.0%
Canadian Plan 6.3 7.0 8.0
Combined weighted 

average rate 6.8 7.4 7.2
Long-term rate of return on 

Plan assets:
U. S. Plans 9.0 9.0 9.0
Canadian Plan 8.0 8.0 8.0

Rate of compensation 
increase:

U. S. Plans 5.0 5.5 5.5
Canadian Plan 4.5 5.5 5.5

Net pension plan income (expense) consisted of the follow-

ing (in millions):

1997 1996 1995
Return on plan assets:

Actual return, gain $ 263.8 $162.4 $ 241.2
Deferred (gain) (145.5) (14.2) (152.9)

■■■■ ■■■■
Actuarial assumed return 118.3 148.2 88.3
Service cost (42.5) (41.3) (36.7)
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligations (60.1) (51.7) (48.3)
Net amortization (11.6) (56.0) (10.9)

■■■■ ■■■■
Net pension plan income 

(expense) recognized in 
consolidated statements 
of income $ 4.1 $ (0.8) $ (7.6)

■■■■ ■■■■
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The funded status of the Plans at year-end was as follows

(in millions):
1997 1996

Fair value of assets at year-end $1,662.6 $1,392.0
■■Actuarially determined present value of:

Vested benefit obligations 916.7 758.9
Non-vested benefit obligations 15.8 9.3

■■Accumulated benefit obligations 932.5 768.2
Additional amounts related to 

projected compensation 
increases 124.3 98.9

■■Projected benefit obligations 1,056.8 867.1
■■Fair value of assets in excess of 

projected benefit obligations 605.8 524.9
Adjustment for difference in book 

and tax basis of assets (165.1) (165.1)
Unamortized prior service costs 

resulting from improved Plan 
benefits 93.7 83.3

Net gain from actuarial experience 
which has not been recognized in 
the consolidated financial 
statements (193.0) (114.4)

■■Prepaid pension costs $ 341.4 $ 328.7
■■

Retirement Restoration Plan  The Retirement Restoration Plan

provides death benefits and supplemental income payments for

senior executives after retirement. The Company recognized

expense of $4.3 million in 1997, $4.4 million in 1996 and $3.4

million in 1995. The aggregate projected benefit obligation of the

Retirement Restoration Plan was approximately $48.4 million at

year-end 1997 and $44.9 million at year-end 1996.

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions  In addition to pen-

sion and the Retirement Restoration Plan benefits, the Company

sponsors plans that provide postretirement medical and life

insurance benefits to certain salaried employees. Retirees share

a portion of the cost of the postretirement medical plans.

Safeway pays all of the cost of the life insurance plans. The

plans are not funded. 

In 1996, the Safeway postretirement medical plan was

amended to restrict the types of coverage available, to change

the participant contributions, and to exclude future retirees from

participating in the plan. The exclusion of future retirees in the

plan was considered a curtailment under the provisions of SFAS

No. 88 which resulted in recognition of a curtailment gain of

$14.5 million in 1996. In 1997, similar amendments were made

to the Vons postretirement medical plan, resulting in a $14.0

million adjustment to the accumulated postretirement benefit

obligation (“APBO”) at the date of the Merger. 

The Company’s APBO was $28.4 million at year-end 1997

and $15.9 million at year-end 1996. The APBO represents the

actuarial present value of benefits expected to be paid after

retirement. Postretirement benefit expense was $2.2 million in

1997, $1.7 million in 1996 and $2.5 million in 1995. 

The significant assumptions used to determine the periodic

postretirement benefit expense and the APBO were as follows:

1997 1996 1995
Discount rate 7.0% 7.0% 7.0%
Rate of compensation increase 5.5 5.5 5.5

For 1998, a 7.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita

cost of postretirement medical benefits provided under the

Company’s group health plan was assumed. The rate was

assumed to decrease gradually to 5.5% for 2002 and remain at

that level thereafter. A 5.5% annual rate of increase was

assumed for 1998 and thereafter in the per capita cost of postre-

tirement benefits provided under HMO plans. If the health care

cost trend rate assumptions were increased by 1% in each year,

the APBO as of year-end 1997 would increase $0.8 million, and

the net periodic postretirement benefit expense for 1997 would

remain unchanged. Retiree contributions have historically been

adjusted when plan costs increase. The APBO for the medical

plans anticipates future cost-sharing changes to the written plan

that are consistent with the Company’s past practice. 

Multi-Employer Pension Plans  Safeway participates in various

multi-employer pension plans, covering virtually all Company

employees not covered under the Company’s non-contributory

pension plans, pursuant to agreements between the Company

and employee bargaining units which are members of such plans.

These plans are generally defined benefit plans; however, in many

cases, specific benefit levels are not negotiated with or known by

the employer-contributors. Contributions of $130 million in 1997,

$112 million in 1996 and $105 million in 1995 were made and

charged to income.

Under U.S. legislation regarding such pension plans, a

company is required to continue funding its proportionate

share of a plan’s unfunded vested benefits in the event of

withdrawal (as defined by the legislation) from a plan or plan

termination. Safeway participates in a number of these pen-

sion plans, and the potential obligation as a participant in

these plans may be significant. The information required to

determine the total amount of this contingent obligation, as

well as the total amount of accumulated benefits and net

assets of such plans, is not readily available. During 1988 and

1987, the Company sold certain operations. In most cases the

party acquiring the operation agreed to continue making con-

tributions to the plans. Safeway is relieved of the obligations

related to these sold operations to the extent the acquiring

parties continue to make contributions. Whether such sales

could result in withdrawal under ERISA and, if so, whether

such withdrawals could result in liability to the Company, is

not determinable at this time. 



Collective Bargaining Agreements  At year-end 1997, Safeway

had approximately 147,000 full and part-time employees.

Approximately 90% of Safeway’s employees in the United States

and Canada are covered by collective bargaining agreements

negotiated with local unions affiliated with one of 12 different

international unions. There are approximately 400 such agree-

ments, typically having three-year terms, with some agreements

having terms up to five years. Accordingly, Safeway negotiates a

significant number of these agreements every year. 

Safeway concluded early negotiations and signed new labor

contracts that would have been due to expire in 1998. Certain of

these contracts were with employees represented by the United

Food and Commercial Workers Union in northern California and

Spokane, Washington. In addition, union members in British

Columbia ratified a new labor contract. As a result of these early

negotiations, the only significant remaining labor contracts due 

to expire in 1998 are in the Seattle and Winnipeg operating areas

covering approximately 110 stores. Management considers the

terms of these new contracts to be satisfactory.

Note I : Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliates

Safeway’s investment in unconsolidated affiliates consists of a

49% ownership interest in Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V. (“Casa Ley”),

which operates 74 food and general merchandise stores in

western Mexico.

Income from Safeway’s equity investment in Casa Ley, recorded

on a one-quarter delay basis, increased to $22.7 million in 1997

from $18.8 million in 1996 and $8.6 million in 1995. For much of

1995, Mexico suffered from high interest rates and inflation which

adversely affected Casa Ley. Since 1996, interest rates and infla-

tion in Mexico moderated and Casa Ley’s financial results have

gradually improved.

Casa Ley had total assets of $319.0 million and $263.1 million

as of September 30, 1997 and 1996 based on financial informa-

tion provided by Casa Ley. Sales and net income for Casa Ley were

as follows (in millions of U.S. dollars):

12 months ended September 30, 

1997 1996 1995

Sales $943.8 $810.1 $861.4
■■■■ ■■■■

Net income $ 38.6 $ 33.8 $ 17.9
■■■■ ■■■■

Through April 8, 1997, the Company also owned 15.1 million

common shares, or 34.4% of the total shares outstanding, of

Vons. Vons is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of Safeway, and as

of the beginning of the second quarter of 1997, Safeway’s con-

solidated financial statements include Vons’ financial position

and results of operations.

Safeway’s share of Vons’ earnings was $12.2 million for the

first quarter of 1997 compared to $7.2 million for the first quarter

of 1996, and $31.2 million for the year in 1996. 

Note J:  Related-Party Transactions

KKR provides management, consulting and financial services to

the Company for an annual fee. Such services include, but are

not necessarily limited to, advice and assistance concerning any

and all aspects of the operation, planning and financing of the

Company. Payments for management fees, special services and

reimbursement of expenses were $1,399,000 in 1997,

$1,364,000 in 1996 and $1,355,000 in 1995. 

The Company holds an 80% interest in Property Development

Associates (“PDA”), a partnership formed in 1987 with a compa-

ny controlled by an affiliate of KKR, to purchase, manage and

dispose of certain Safeway facilities which are no longer used in

the retail grocery business. The financial statements of PDA are

consolidated with those of the Company and a minority interest

of $24.0 million and $25.1 million at year-end 1997 and 1996 is

included in accrued claims and other liabilities in the accompa-

nying consolidated balance sheets. During 1997, the Company

contributed to PDA six properties no longer used in its retail gro-

cery business which had an aggregate net book value of $4.9

million. During 1996, the Company contributed to PDA 16 prop-

erties no longer used in its retail grocery business which had an

aggregate net book value of $8.4 million. The minority partner

contributed cash in an amount sufficient to maintain its 20%

ownership. No gains or losses were recognized on these transac-

tions. Safeway paid PDA $1.5 million in 1997, $1.6 million in

1996 and $1.5 million in 1995 for reimbursement of expenses

related to management and real estate services provided by PDA. 
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Note K:  Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Matters In July 1988, there was a major fire at the

Company’s dry grocery warehouse in Richmond, California.

Through January 3, 1998, in excess of 125,000 claims for per-

sonal injury and property damage arising from the fire have

been settled for an aggregate amount of approximately $122.5

million. The Company’s loss as a result of the fire damage to its

property and settlement of the above claims was substantially

covered by insurance.

As of January 3, 1998, there were still pending approximately

3,500 claims against the Company for personal injury (including

punitive damages), and approximately 460 separate claims for

property damage, arising from the smoke, ash and embers gen-

erated by the fire. A substantial percentage of these claims have

been asserted in lawsuits against the Company filed in the

Superior Court for Alameda County, California. There can be no

assurance that the pending claims will be settled or otherwise

disposed of for amounts and on terms comparable to those set-

tled to date.

In early 1996, a purported class action was filed on behalf of

persons allegedly injured as a result of the smoke, ash and

embers generated by the fire. The complaint, which was amend-

ed after the Court sustained the Company’s demurrer with leave

to amend, generally alleges that the Company fraudulently (i)

obtained settlements of certain claims arising out of the fire and

(ii) made statements that induced claimants not to file actions

within the time period under the statute of limitations. The

amended complaint seeks compensatory and punitive damages.

The Company has received notice from its insurance carrier

denying coverage for claims asserted in this case. Safeway

strongly disagrees with the insurance carrier’s denial of cover-

age. On April 21, 1997, the Court sustained Safeway’s demurrer

to the second amended complaint without leave to amend. In

May 1997, the Court dismissed the case, and plaintiffs have

filed an appeal, which is pending.

Safeway believes that coverage under its insurance policy will

be sufficient and available for resolution of all remaining third-

party claims arising out of the fire.

On September 13, 1996, a class action lawsuit entitled

McCampbell et al. v. Ralphs Grocery Company, et al., was filed

in the Superior Court of San Diego County, California against

Vons and two other grocery store chains operating in southern

California. In the complaint it is alleged, among other things,

that Vons and the other defendants conspired to fix the retail

price of eggs in southern California. The plaintiffs claim that the

defendants violated provisions of the California Cartwright Act

and engaged in unfair competition. Plaintiffs seek damages they

allege the class has sustained; the amount of damages sought is

not specified. If any damages were to be awarded, they may be

trebled under the applicable statute. In addition, plaintiffs seek

an injunction against future acts that would be in restraint of

trade or that would constitute unfair competition. An answer has

been filed to the complaint that denies plaintiffs’ allegations and

sets forth several defenses. On October 3, 1997, the Court

issued an order certifying a class of retail purchasers of white

chicken eggs by the dozen from defendants’ stores within the

Counties of Los Angeles, Riverside, San Bernardino, San Diego,

Imperial and Orange during the period from September 13,

1992 to the present. The Company believes that Vons has meri-

torious defenses to plaintiffs’ claims.

There are also pending against the Company various claims

and lawsuits arising in the normal course of business, some of

which seek damages and other relief, which, if granted, would

require very large expenditures.

It is management’s opinion that although the amount of liability

with respect to all of the above matters cannot be ascertained at

this time, any resulting liability, including any punitive damages,

will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial

statements taken as a whole.

Commitments  The Company has commitments under contracts

for the purchase of property and equipment and for the con-

struction of buildings. Portions of such contracts not completed

at year-end are not reflected in the consolidated financial state-

ments. These unrecorded commitments were $92.5 million at

year-end 1997.



Note L:  Financial Information by Geographic Area
United

(In millions) States Canada Total

1997

Sales $19,075.9 $3,407.9 $22,483.8

Gross profit 5,537.9 876.8 6,414.7

Operating profit 1,169.6 110.1 1,279.7

Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss 978.4 97.9 1,076.3

Net working capital (deficit) (487.9) (21.0) (508.9)

Total assets 7,613.7 880.2 8,493.9

Net assets 1,712.3 436.7 2,149.0

1996

Sales $13,797.5 $3,471.5 $17,269.0

Gross profit 3,901.3 872.9 4,774.2

Operating profit 752.8 138.9 891.7

Income before income taxes 652.2 115.4 767.6

Net working capital (deficit) (442.7) 67.1 (375.6)

Total assets 4,625.4 919.8 5,545.2

Net assets 792.4 394.4 1,186.8

1995

Sales $12,902.4 $3,495.1 $16,397.5

Gross profit 3,584.5 907.9 4,492.4

Operating profit 590.1 137.3 727.4

Income before income taxes and extraordinary loss 448.9 107.6 556.5

Net working capital (deficit) (490.1) 65.9 (424.2)

Total assets 4,261.5 932.8 5,194.3

Net assets 462.6 332.9 795.5
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Note M:  Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The summarized quarterly fianancial data presented below reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are of a normal

and recurring nature necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the periods presented.

Last 17 Third 12 Second 12 First 12 
(In millions, except per-share amounts) Year Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks

1997

Sales $22,483.8 $7,785.4 $5,371.4 $5,249.2 $4,077.8

Gross profit 6,414.7 2,211.3 1,552.6 1,505.3 1,145.5

Operating profit 1,279.7 439.6 317.3 298.0 224.8

Income before income taxes and 

extraordinary loss 1,076.3 372.2 259.8 240.2 204.1

Extraordinary loss related to 

early retirement of debt (64.1) – (59.9) (4.2) –

Net income 557.4 214.9 90.1 129.9 122.5

Earnings per share:

Basic

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.35 $ 0.46 $ 0.32 $ 0.29 $ 0.28

Extraordinary loss (0.14) – (0.13) (0.01) –
■■■ ■■■ ■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 1.21 $ 0.46 $ 0.19 $ 0.28 $ 0.28
■■■ ■■■ ■■■ ■■■

Diluted

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 0.43 $ 0.30 $ 0.27 $ 0.26

Extraordinary loss (0.13) – (0.12) (0.01) –
■■■ ■■■ ■■■ ■■■

Net income $ 1.12 $ 0.43 $ 0.18 $ 0.26 $ 0.26
■■■ ■■■ ■■■ ■■■

Price range, New York Stock Exchange $ 3123⁄32 $ 3123⁄32 $ 273⁄4 $ 2413⁄16 $ 26

to 20 9⁄16 to 25 11⁄32 to 231⁄16 to 211⁄8 to 20 9⁄16

Last 16 Third 12 Second 12 First 12 
(In millions, except per-share amounts) Year Weeks Weeks Weeks Weeks

1996 

Sales $17,269.0 $5,486.9 $3,954.0 $3,945.4 $3,882.7

Gross profit 4,774.2 1,493.0 1,086.6 1,102.1 1,092.5

Operating profit 891.7 283.7 203.8 210.1 194.1

Income before income taxes 767.6 248.2 178.1 179.2 162.1

Net income 460.6 151.6 105.9 106.7 96.4

Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.06 $ 0.34 $ 0.24 $ 0.25 $ 0.22

Diluted 0.97 0.31 0.22 0.22 0.20

Price range, New York Stock Exchange $ 2211⁄16 $ 2211⁄16 $ 19 1⁄8 $ 17 13⁄16 $ 15 1⁄16

to 117⁄32 to 18 5⁄8 to 15 7⁄8 to 13 13⁄16 to 117⁄32



1997 1996 1995
■■■ ■■■(In millions, except per-share amounts) Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic

Income before extraordinary loss $621.5 $621.5 $460.6 $460.6 $328.3 $328.3
Extraordinary loss (64.1) (64.1) – – (2.0) (2.0)

■■ ■■■■ ■■ ■■■■ ■■
Net income $557.4 $557.4 $460.6 $460.6 $326.3 $326.3

■■ ■■■■ ■■ ■■■■ ■■

Weighted average common shares outstanding 462.3 462.3 436.0 436.0 423.9 423.9
■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■■■■

Common share equivalents 35.4 39.7 57.3
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■

Weighted average shares outstanding 497.7 475.7 481.2
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■

Earnings per common share and 
common share equivalent:

Income before extraordinary loss $ 1.25 $ 1.35 $ 0.97 $ 1.06 $ 0.68 $ 0.77 
Extraordinary loss (0.13) (0.14) – – – –

■■ ■■■■ ■■ ■■■■ ■■
Net income $ 1.12 $ 1.21 $ 0.97 $ 1.06 $ 0.68 $ 0.77

■■ ■■■■ ■■ ■■■■ ■■

Calculation of common share equivalents:
Options and warrants to purchase 

common shares 58.6 62.6 88.1
Common shares assumed purchased with 

potential proceeds (23.2) (22.9) (30.8)
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■

Common share equivalents 35.4 39.7 57.3
■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■■■ ■■■■■■■

Calculation of common shares assumed 
purchased with potential proceeds:

Potential proceeds from exercise of options 
and warrants to purchase common shares $597.4 $394.3 $298.9

Common stock price used under the 
treasury stock method $25.75 $ 17.22 $ 9.70

Common shares assumed purchased with 
potential proceeds 23.2 22.9 30.8

Share and per-share amounts reflect the two-for-one stock splits effected in February 1998 and in January 1996. 
Earnings per share have been restated in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 128, “Earnings per Share.”

SAFEWAY INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Computation of Earnings Per Share
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Financial Statements  Safeway Inc. is responsible for the prepa-

ration, integrity and fair presentation of its published financial

statements. The accompanying consolidated financial state-

ments have been prepared in accordance with generally accept-

ed accounting principles and necessarily include amounts that

are based on judgments and estimates made by management.

Safeway also prepared the other information included in the

annual report and is responsible for its accuracy and consisten-

cy with the financial statements. 

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte &

Touche LLP, independent auditors, which was given unrestricted

access to all financial records and related data, including min-

utes of all meetings of stockholders, the Board of Directors and

committees of the Board. Safeway believes that all representa-

tions made to the independent auditors during their audit were

valid and appropriate. The report of Deloitte & Touche LLP is pre-

sented below. 

Internal Control System  Safeway maintains a system of internal

control over financial reporting, which is designed to provide

reasonable assurance to management and the Board of

Directors regarding the preparation of reliable published finan-

cial statements. The system includes a documented organiza-

tional structure and division of responsibility; established policies

and procedures including a code of conduct to foster a strong

ethical climate, which are communicated throughout Safeway;

and the careful selection, training and development of employ-

ees. Internal auditors monitor the operation of the internal con-

trol system and report findings and recommendations to man-

agement and the Board, and corrective actions are taken to

address control deficiencies and other opportunities for improv-

ing the system as they are identified. The Board, operating

through its Audit Committee, which is composed entirely of out-

side directors, provides oversight to the financial reporting

process. 

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any sys-

tem of internal control, including the possibility of circumvention

or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even an effective internal

control system can provide only reasonable assurance with

respect to financial statement preparation. Furthermore, the

effectiveness of an internal control system can change with cir-

cumstances. As of January 3, 1998, Safeway believes its system

of internal controls over financial reporting was effective for pro-

viding reliable financial statements. 

Steven A. Burd Julian C. Day

President and Executive Vice President and 

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

Management’s Report

39

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Safeway Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

of Safeway Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 3, 1998 and

December 28, 1996, and the related consolidated statements of

income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the

three fiscal years in the period ended January 3, 1998. These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s

management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on

these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material mis-

statement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evi-

dence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting prin-

ciples used and significant estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We

believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Safeway Inc.

and subsidiaries as of January 3, 1998 and December 28, 1996,

and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of

the three fiscal years in the period ended January 3, 1998 in con-

formity with generally accepted accounting principles.

San Francisco, California

February 27, 1998
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KKR & Co., L.L.C.

Michael T. Tokarz
Member
KKR & Co., L.L.C.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Steven A. Burd
President and Chief Executive Officer

Kenneth W. Oder
Executive Vice President
Labor Relations, Human Resources,
Law and Public Affairs

Julian C. Day
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Financial Officer

David F. Bond 
Senior Vice President 
Finance and Control 

David T. Ching 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Information Officer 

Lawrence V. Jackson 
Senior Vice President 
Supply Operations 

Diane Peck
Senior Vice President
Human Resources

Melissa C. Plaisance
Senior Vice President 
Finance and Public Affairs

Larree M. Renda
Senior Vice President
Corporate Retail Operations

Michael C. Ross
Senior Vice President
Secretary and General Counsel

Gary D. Smith
Senior Vice President and
Director of Marketing

Donald P. Wright
Senior Vice President
Real Estate and Engineering

Richard A. Wilson
Vice President
Tax

OTHER OFFICERS

Senior Vice Presidents – Retail

Garnet Berg
Phoenix Division Manager 

Michael J. Bessire
Eastern Division Manager 

Robert A. Diens 
Seattle Division Manager 

Bruce Everette 
Northern California Division Manager

Robert H. Henry 
Portland Division Manager 

John A. King 
Denver Division Manager 

Richard E. Goodspeed 
President and Chief Operating Officer
The Vons Companies, Inc.

Richard Dreiling 
Director of Marketing 
The Vons Companies, Inc.

Lyn C. Gordon
Chief Administrative and
Financial Officer
The Vons Companies, Inc.

Vice Presidents – Retail

Howard Befort 
Glenn E. Davis 
Wayne Foxworthy 
Steven R. Frisby 
Gordon Harman 
Rojon Hasker 
Gerard A. Hoffman 
Joseph Holden 
Gerald D. Jones
James R. Lewis
Thomas A. Mossey
J. Gary Rhymes
Karl Schroeder 
Gregory A. Sparks
Lyle A. Waterman
Ronald S. Zinter

Vice Presidents – Supply

Stephen A. Armstrong
Stephen J. Kennedy
Chris D. Moloney

Vice Presidents – Service

Jeffrey D. Ahlers 
Michael J. Boylan 
Richard E. Cancilla 
Robert S. Carlson 
Thomas J. Conway 
Nancy E. Cota 
Thomas J. DeMott 
Dennis J. Dunne 
Michael J. Ferrell 
Terry L. Gilbreth 
Ray F. Klocke 
Terry C. Lee 
Michael R. Minasi
Harvey K. Naito
Thomas D. Nartker
Richard S. Oas
Ronald K. Parmelee
Stuart E. Rhea
Scott K. Rutherford
Kenneth M. Shachmut
Donald B. Shaw
David R. Stern
Linda M. Watt
David R. Weierman
James E. Whitticom

FOREIGN SUBSIDIARY OPERATIONS

CANADA SAFEWAY LIMITED

Directors

Grant M. Hansen 
President and Chief Operating Officer 

Gerald A. Geoffrey
Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

M. Bruce Bowman
Vice President, General Counsel
and Secretary

Other Officers

Vice Presidents – Retail

John Mitchell
David E. Rodych
Daniel Skelly

Vice Presidents – Service

Earl R. Brown 
Gord K. Cannady 
Louis J. Hogan 
Chuck J. Mulvenna
Linda T. Oswald
William Sexsmith

EQUITY AFFILIATE

Casa Ley, S.A. de C.V. (Mexico)
Juan Manuel Ley Lopez
Director General

Directors and Officers
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EXECUTIVE OFFICES
Mailing Address:
Safeway Inc.
P.O. Box 99
Pleasanton, CA 94566-0009

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
First Chicago Trust Company of New York
P.O. Box 2500
Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500
800-756-8200

FORM 10-K
A copy of Safeway’s 1997 Form 10-K
filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission may be obtained by writing
to the Investor Relations Department 
at our executive offices, or by calling 
925-467-3790.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte & Touche LLP

San Francisco, California

ANNUAL MEETING
The 1997 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
will be held on May 12, 1998. A notice of
the meeting, together with a proxy state-
ment and a form of proxy, were mailed to
stockholders with this annual report. 

STOCK EXCHANGE LISTING
The company’s common stock, which
trades under the symbol SWY, and certain
debentures and notes are listed on the
New York Stock Exchange. 

INTERNET ADDRESS
Safeway’s web site on the Internet can be
accessed at http://www.safeway.com.

INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Communication regarding investor records,
including changes of address or owner-
ship, should be directed to the company’s
transfer agent, First Chicago Trust
Company of New York, at the address 
listed on the left. To inquire by phone,
please call 800-756-8200.

Investors, security analysts and mem-
bers of the media should direct their
financial inquiries to Melissa C. Plaisance,
Senior Vice President, Finance and Public
Affairs, at our executive offices.

To obtain or access financial reports,
please write to our Investor Relations
Department, call 925-467-3790 or check
our web site at http://www.safeway.com.

EEO-1 REPORT
As an equal opportunity employer, Safeway
values and actively supports diversity in 
the workplace. A copy of the company’s
1997 summary EEO-1 report, filed with the
federal Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, is available upon request at 
our executive offices.

TRUSTEES AND PAYING AGENTS

6.85% Senior Notes
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations Department
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286
800-524-4458

7.00% Senior Notes
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations Department
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286
800-524-4458

7.45% Senior Debentures
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations Department
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286
800-524-4458

9.30% Senior Secured Debentures
The First National Bank of Chicago
One First National Plaza, Suite 1026
Chicago, IL 60670
312-407-1761

9.35% Senior Subordinated Notes
Harris Trust and Savings Bank
P.O. Box 755
Chicago, IL 60690
312-461-2908

9.65% Senior Subordinated Debentures
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations Department
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286
800-524-4458

9.875% Senior Subordinated Debentures
Harris Trust and Savings Bank
P.O. Box 755
Chicago, IL 60690
312-461-2908

10.0% Senior Subordinated Notes
The Bank of New York
Shareholder Relations Department
Church Street Station
P.O. Box 11258
New York, NY 10286
800-524-4458

10.0% Senior Notes

Trustee
The Chase Manhattan Bank
Corporate Trust Administration
4 Chase MetroTech Center
Brooklyn, NY 11245
212-946-3040

Paying Agent
Bankers Trust Company
Corporate Trust & Agency Group
4 Albany Street, 4th Floor
New York, NY 10006
212-250-6161 

Investor Information
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